
 
 
 
 

Licensing Committee (Non Licensing Act 
2003 Functions) 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: 13 February 2024 

Time: 3.00pm 

Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall, Norton Road, Hove, BN3 
3BQ - HTH/CC 

Members: Councillors: Daniel (Chair), Sheard (Deputy Chair), Pickett 
(Opposition Spokesperson), Davis, Baghoth, Cattell, Czolak, 
Fowler, Hewitt, Lyons, McGregor, Nann, Robinson, Theobald and 
Thomson 

Contact: Thomas Bald 
Democratic Services Officer 
01273 291354 
thomas.bald@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Electronic agendas can also be accessed through our meetings app available through 
ModernGov: iOS/Windows/Android 
 

This agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper 
 

http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en_GB
https://www.microsoft.com/en-gb/p/modgov/9nblggh0c7s7#activetab=pivot:overviewtab
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en_GB


AGENDA 
 

PART ONE Page 

 

18 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declaration of Substitutes: Where Councillors are unable to attend a 
meeting, a substitute Member from the same Political Group may 
attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 

 
(b) Declarations of Interest:  
 

(a) Disclosable pecuniary interests  
(b) Any other interests required to be registered under the local 

code; 
(c) Any other general interest as a result of which a decision on the 

matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting you or a 
partner more than a majority of other people or businesses in 
the ward/s affected by the decision. 

 
In each case, you need to declare  
(i) the item on the agenda the interest relates to; 
(ii) the nature of the interest; and 
(iii) whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other 

interest. 
 

If unsure, Members should seek advice from the committee lawyer 
or administrator preferably before the meeting. 

 
(c) Exclusion of Press and Public: To consider whether, in view of the 

nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part Two of the Agenda states in its 
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the 
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the 
public. 

 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

19 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 To consider the minutes of the previous meeting held on 12 October 
2023. 

 

 

20 CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

21 CALLOVER  

 (a) Items (24 – 26) will be read out at the meeting and Members  



invited to reserve the items for consideration. 
 

(b) Those items not reserved will be taken as having been received 
and the reports’ recommendations agreed. 

 

22 PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 7 - 8 

 To consider the following matters raised by members of the public: 
 
(a) Petitions: to receive any petitions presented to the full council or at 

the meeting itself; 
 
(1) Ahmed Abuorof – Penalty Points System 
 

(b) Written Questions: to receive any questions submitted by the due 
date of 12 noon on the 7 February; 

(c) Deputations: to receive any deputations submitted by the due date 
of 12 noon on the 7 February. 

 

 

23 MEMBER INVOLVEMENT  

 To consider the following matters raised by councillors: 
 
(a) Petitions: to receive any petitions submitted to the full Council or at 

the meeting itself; 
(b) Written Questions: to consider any written questions; 
(c) Letters: to consider any letters; 
(d) Notices of Motion: to consider any Notices of Motion referred from 

Council or submitted directly to the Committee. 

 

 

24 HACKNEY CARRIAGE & PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER ENFORCEMENT 
AND MONITORING 

9 - 14 

 Contact Officer: Martin Seymour Tel: 01273 296659  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

25 HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE PENALTY POINTS 
SCHEME 

15 - 52 

 Contact Officer: Alex Evans   
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

26 HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARE REVIEW 53 - 64 

 Contact Officer: Martin Seymour Tel: 01273 296659  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

27 ITEMS REFERRED FOR COUNCIL  

 To consider items to be submitted to the 28 March Council meeting for 

information. 

 

 



In accordance with Procedure Rule 24.3a, the Committee may determine 
that any item is to be included in its report to Council. In addition, 
any Group may specify one further item to be included by notifying the 
Chief Executive no later than 10am on the eighth working day before the 
Council meeting at which the report is to be made, or if the Committee 
meeting take place after this deadline, immediately at the conclusion of 
the Committee meeting. 

 



 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made on 
the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be raised 
can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fourth working day before the meeting. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
Infra-red hearing aids are available for use during the meeting. If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the receptionist on arrival. 
 
FURTHER INFORMATION 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact , (01273 291354, email 
thomas.bald@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk  
 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s website.  At the 
start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.  You 
should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act 1998.  
Data collected during this web cast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s 
published policy. 
 
Therefore, by entering the meeting room and using the seats in the chamber you are deemed 
to be consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for the purpose of web casting and/or Member training.  If members of the public 
do not wish to have their image captured, they should sit in the public gallery area. 
 
ACCESS NOTICE 
The Public Gallery is situated on the first floor of the Town Hall and is limited in size but does 
have 2 spaces designated for wheelchair users.  The lift cannot be used in an emergency.  
Evac Chairs are available for self-transfer and you are requested to inform Reception prior to 
going up to the Public Gallery.  For your own safety please do not go beyond the Ground 
Floor if you are unable to use the stairs. 
Please inform staff on Reception of this affects you so that you can be directed to the Council 
Chamber where you can watch the meeting or if you need to take part in the proceedings e.g. 
because you have submitted a public question. 
 
FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by council staff.  
It is vital that you follow their instructions: 

 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts; 

 Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further instructions; and 

 Do not re-enter the building until told that it is safe to do so. 

 
Date of Publication - Monday, 5 February 2024 

 

 

mailto:democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk


     

     



Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Licensing Committee Agenda Item 22 (a)
  

Subject: Petitions 
 
Date of meeting: 13 February 2024 
 
Contact Officer: Name: Thomas Bald 
 Email: thomas.bald@brighton-hove.gov.uk  
  
Ward(s) affected: All  
 

 
1. Purpose of the report and policy context 
1.1 To receive any petitions submitted directly to Democratic Services or any e-

Petition submitted via the council’s website. 
 

2. Recommendations 
2.1 That the committee responds to the petition either by noting it or where it is 

considered more appropriate, calls for an officer report on the matter. 
  

3. Context and background information 
3.1 To receive the following petition signed by 549 people at the time of 

publication: 

 
https://www.change.org/p/penalty-points-system-opposes-
against?source_location=search 
 
(1) Petition to oppose Penalty Points for Brighton & Hove Taxi Drivers: 

Dear Brighton & Hove city council, 

We are writing to express our deep concern and disappointment regarding the 
proposed penalty points system proposed for taxi drivers in Brighton and Hove. It 
has come to our attention that this system could cause significant challenges and 
hardships for many hardworking taxi drivers in our community. 
While we understand the importance of maintaining high standards and ensuring 
passenger safety, we believe that the proposed penalty points system may be 
excessively punitive and does not take into account the unique circumstances that 
taxi drivers often face. As members of our local community, taxi drivers provide an 
essential service, and they play a crucial role in our city's transportation network. 
Our concerns and those of many others in our community are as follows: 
1. Driver Shortage: We are facing a shortage of new taxi drivers joining in Brighton 
& Hove, and imposing penalty points could discourage individuals from entering or 
staying in the profession. 
2. Complex Violations: Some violations by taxi drivers may involve complex 
circumstances or disputes that are better addressed through arbitration or 
mediation rather than a straightforward penalty points system. 
3. Economic Impact: Considering current economic impact on taxi drivers and 
council itself, this will cost money to implement, plus the excessive use of penalty 
points could lead to financial hardship for drivers. 
4. Focus on Core Issues: Councils may prioritise addressing more significant 

7

mailto:thomas.bald@brighton-hove.gov.uk


 

 

issues in the taxi industry, such as safety concerns, vehicle standards, or customer 
service, and may choose to allocate resources accordingly. 
5. Enhancing vehicle standards: By applying Vehicle suitability test every 6 months, 
rather than waiting for the driver to commit an offence and issue him a penalty 
point. 
6. It is already implemented in the British Law: If a driver commits a driving offence, 
he will be issued with penalty points and if it is serious, driver will lose his driving 
licence and taxi licence at the same time. 
7. Monitoring and Improvement: Councils may opt for continuous monitoring and 
improvement programs for taxi services, where they work closely with drivers to 
identify and rectify issues without resorting to penalty points. 
8. Educate and do not prosecute: Educating taxi drivers effectively by training 
courses, communication, online seminars and support do not wait till the driver 
makes a mistake to be prosecuted. 
9. Inconsistent Enforcement: The application of penalty points appears to be 
inconsistent and sometimes arbitrary. Drivers often receive points for minor 
infractions that do not necessarily pose a threat to passenger safety. 
 

 

8



Brighton & Hove City Council 

 
 

Licensing Committee 
(Non-Licensing Act 2003 
Functions) 

Agenda Item 24

  

Subject: Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Driver Enforcement and 
Monitoring 

 
Date of meeting: 13 February 2024 
 

   Report of: Executive Director of Housing,  
                     Neighbourhoods & Communities 

 
Contact Officer: Name: Martin Seymour / Alex Evans  
 Tel: 01273 296659 
 Email: martin.seymour@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
  
Ward(s) affected: All  
 
For general release   
 

1. Purpose of the report and policy context 
 
1.1 This report was requested by Members to update Members on enforcement 

action taken against Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Drivers and Applicants 
between October 2023 and January 2024.  
 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1      That Members note the contents of this report and that officers should continue 
to act as appropriate.  

 
3. Context and background information 

 
3.1 Legislation in relation to the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 which applies to both 
hackney carriages and private hire vehicles is enforced by the local 
authority. Non-criminal enforcement can also be affected by means of action 
taken against the licence held by the person who has transgressed such as 
warnings, suspensions, or revocations.  

 
3.2 Any driver must be a fit and proper person. It is not possible to give a 

precise definition of what this is, but at its heart is keeping passengers safe 
and free from risk. It is the responsibility of the applicant to satisfy the 
council that they are fit and proper and that they are safe and suitable to 
hold a licence.  

 
3.3 The council can suspend, revoke, or refuse a hackney carriage or private 

hire vehicles and/or driver licences. However, a driver licence cannot be 
suspended and then revoked at a later date such as at the conclusion of a 
prosecution. Other actions are available to officers such as verbal or written 

9



 

 

warnings which can be applied in line with the Councils Licensing 
Enforcement Policy.  

   
3.4 All cases are looked at on their own individual merit and if necessary, such 

as in Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) cases multi agency meetings may be 
held to review available evidence. When acting against a licence, decisions 
are investigated by officers and a recommendation is made to a manager 
who makes the decision in consultation with a lawyer. In addition, the most 
difficult matters would come to the Chair and to the two lead members for 
discussion. If a matter was serious and required immediate suspension, then 
officers would come to members as soon as possible after they had acted.  

 
3.5 On the 27 April 2023 the Government announced that it had brought the 

remainder of the Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles (Safeguarding and Road 
Safety) Act 2022 into force. This means that it is now mandatory for all 
licensing authorities in England to use the National Register for Revocations, 
Refusals and Suspensions (NR3S) Hosted by the National Anti-Fraud 
Network (NAFN).  
Licensing authorities in England must:  

 Record refusals, suspensions and revocations of taxi and private 
hire vehicle driver licences relating to safeguarding or road safety 
reasons. 

 Search the NR3S database for every application for a new or 
renewed taxi and private hire vehicle driving licence and have 
regard to any information found. 

This is in addition to the requirements that came into effect in May 2022 
which require licensing authorities in England to:  

 Report serious safeguarding and road safety concerns about 
licensed drivers operating in their area but licensed by another 
authority to the relevant licensing authority.   

 Consider suspending or revoking a driver’s licence if another GB 
licensing authority reports a serious safeguarding or road safety 
concern and inform the reporting authority of its decision. 

 
3.6 On the 17 November 2023 the Department for Transport published its updated 

Taxi and private hire vehicle licensing best practice guidance for licensing 
authorities in England. Best Practice Guidance The guidance states: 
  
Implementing an effective framework for licensing authorities, to ensure that 
a full range of information is made available to suitably-trained decision 
makers who are supported by well-resourced officials, is essential to a well-
functioning taxi and private hire vehicle sector. Whilst this helps prevent the 
licensing of those that are not deemed ‘fit and proper’, it does not ensure that 
those already licensed continue to display the behaviours and standards 
expected. 

 
 

3.7 In addition to day-to-day enforcement work, officers normally carryout 
weekly out of hours enforcement work, normally at weekends and weekday 
evenings. This includes monitoring of hot spot areas for over and illegal 
ranking and plying for hire, vehicle inspections and occasional test purchase 

10

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licensing-best-practice-guidance/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licensing-best-practice-guidance-for-licensing-authorities-in-england


 

 

operations. General enforcement is essentially checking the vehicle is safe 
to be on the road and that the driver’s details are correct. The officers are 
trained in vehicle inspection and checks. The officers are trained in vehicle 
inspection which primarily, it involves checking the tyres, lights, steering, 
suspension, as well as the general condition of the vehicle, livery and that 
the meter is working correctly.  
 

3.8 Officers have been holding discussions with Transport Enforcement and 
Parking Enforcement to help improve the situation outside Brighton Station 
with taxis dropping and picking up passengers in the bus stops and 
surrounding area. Observing the area on CCTV it appears that most 
vehicles are only there for a short period time and that members of the 
public create a demand for taxis at times which encourages more taxis to 
wait at the front of the station. 

 
3.9 Multi-agency operations take place at various times throughout the year with 

officers from other Local Authorities, Sussex Police, Driver & Vehicle 
Standards Agency (DVSA). 

 
3.10 For actions taken against drivers / applicants between September 2023 and 

January 2024 See Appendix 1.  
 

 
4. Analysis and consideration of alternative options  
 
4.1 None – for Information only. 
 
5. Community engagement and consultation 
 
5.1 Not Applicable 
 
6. Conclusion 

 
6.1 For information only  
 
7. Financial implications 

 
7.1 This report is for information purposes only, so there are no financial   

implications. 
 

Name of finance officer consulted: Michael Bentley Date consulted: 
22/01/24 

 
8. Legal implications 
 
8.1  
 

Name of lawyer consulted: Date consulted (dd/mm/yy):  
 

9. Equalities implications 
 

11



 

 

9.1 Licensing authorities must ensure that a safe hackney carriage and private 
hire service is freely available to meet the demand across all sectors of the 
public, especially those vulnerable groups to whom a taxi or private hire 
vehicle is often the only means of completing a journey.  

 
 
10. Sustainability implications 
 
10.1 None – for information only 
 
11. Other Implications [delete any or all that are not applicable] 

 
Social Value and procurement implications  

 
11.1 None – for information only 
 

Crime & disorder implications:  
 
11.2 None – for information only 

 
 

Public health implications: 
 
11.3 None – for information only 

 
 

 
Supporting Documentation 

 
1. Appendices  
 
 
1. Actions taken against Drivers.  

 
 
 

 

12



Enforcement Actions Since Licensing Committee February 2024 
 

 Licence Type Date Brief Description of Case  Other Information: Enforcement Action Taken: 

1. Hackney Carriage 
& Private Hire 
Dual Driver 
Licence 

09/10/2023 Medical not supplied so unable to 
confirm driver meets DVLA Group 2 
Medical Standard 

 Licence Suspended pending 
further information 

2. Private Hire Driver 
Licence 

09/10/2023 Medical not supplied so unable to 
confirm driver meets DVLA Group 2 
Medical Standard 

 Licence Suspended pending 
further information 

3. Hackney Carriage 
& Private Hire 
Dual Driver 
Licence 

10/10/2023 Driver does not meet DVLA Group 2 
Medical Standard 

 Licence Suspended pending 
further information 

4. Hackney Carriage 
& Private Hire 
Dual Driver 
Licence 

23/10/2023 Driver does not meet DVLA Group 2 
Medical Standard 

 Licence Suspended pending 
further information 

5. Hackney Carriage 
& Private Hire 
Dual Driver 
Licence 

23/10/2023 Driver does not meet DVLA Group 2 
Medical Standard 

 Licence Suspended pending 
further information 

6. Hackney Carriage 
& Private Hire 
Dual Driver 
Licence 

24/10/2023 Driver does not meet DVLA Group 2 
Medical Standard 

Licence Reinstated 15/11/2023 Licence Suspended pending 
further information 

7. Hackney Carriage 
& Private Hire 
Dual Driver 
Licence 

24/10/2023 Driver does not meet DVLA Group 2 
Medical Standard 

Licence Reinstated 20/11/2023 Licence Suspended pending 
further information 

13



8. Private Hire Driver 
Licence 

31/10/2023 Driver does not meet DVLA Group 2 
Medical Standard 

Licence Reinstated 08/11/2023 Licence Suspended pending 
further information 

9. Private Hire Driver 
Licence 

01/11/2023 Driver does not meet DVLA Group 2 
Medical Standard 

 Licence Suspended pending 
further information 

10. First Applicant 15/11/2023 Not fit & proper to hold a licence Previously Revoked Application Refused 

11. Hackney Carriage 
& Private Hire 
Dual Driver 
Licence 

24/11/2023 Driver does not meet DVLA Group 2 
Medical Standard 

Licence Reinstated 14/12/2023 Licence Suspended pending 
further information 

12. Hackney Carriage 
& Private Hire 
Dual Driver 
Licence 

11/12/2023 Under investigation by the Police for 
sexual assault on female passenger 

 Licence Revoked 

13. Hackney Carriage 
& Private Hire 
Dual Driver 
Licence 

20/12/2023 Driver does not meet DVLA Group 2 
Medical Standard 

Licence Reinstated 22/12/2023 Licence Suspended pending 
further information 

14. First Apllicant 08/01/2024 Not fit & proper to hold a licence Conviction involving domestic 
violence in 2018 

Application Refused 

15.      

16.      

 

14



Brighton & Hove City Council 

 
 

Licensing Committee (Non-
Licensing Act 2003) 

Agenda Item 25

  

Subject: Penalty Point System for Hackney Carriage & Private Hire 
Drivers, Proprietors & Operators 

 
Date of meeting: 13 February 2024 
 
Report of: Executive Director of Housing, Neighbourhoods & Communities 
 
Contact Officer: Name: Martin Seymour / Alex Evans  
 Tel: 01273 296659   
 Email: martin.seymour@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
  
Ward(s) affected: All 
 

For general release  
 

1. Purpose of the report and policy context 
 
1.1 Members are asked to consider the introduction of a Taxi Penalty Points System for 

Drivers, Proprietors and Operators. 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 That Committee agrees to introduce a Penalty Point System for Licensed Drivers, 

Proprietors and Operators. 
 

2.2 That Committee agree that Officers review the system 12 months after 
implementation and make any minor changes as necessary. Officers will also 
update committee on how the PPS is working and any issues via the Taxi 
Enforcement report which is presented to each licensing committee. 

 
3. Context and background information 

 
3.1 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Operators, Drivers and Vehicles are principally 

governed by the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Town 
Police Clauses Act 1847, Council’s Byelaws and the Rules, Regulations and 
Conditions set by the Licensing Committee. 
 

3.2 The aim of this policy is to improve the levels of compliance with licensing 
regulations and requirements and to help raise standards, improve safety and 
enhance the protection of members of the public affected by the actions of licensed 
drivers, operators and vehicle proprietors. 
 

3.3 The Council is committed to ensure that only fit and proper persons become, and 
remain, as hackney carriage and private hire drivers, operators, and vehicle 
proprietors. The procedure also seeks to improve the level of transparency and 
consistency in which the licensing system is administered and enforced. 
 

15



 

 

3.4 The penalty point system works in conjunction with other enforcement options. It 
provides a formalised stepped enforcement plan. Its purpose is to record 
misdemeanors and to act as a record of driver’s behaviour and conduct so as to 
ascertain whether they are a fit and proper person. It does not prejudice the 
Council’s ability to take other actions. 
 

3.5 If Operators, Drivers or Proprietors of Vehicles currently commit an offence or 
breach rules, regulations or conditions of licence, the persons involved are asked to 
attend the Council offices for an interview. Once investigations are completed 
options include no further action, formal words of advice, warning letters, additional 
relevant training, suspension or revocation of licence. 
 

3.6 Several neighboring authorities, including  Lewes District Council, Worthing 
Borough Council Mid-Sussex District Council, Rother & Wealden District Council 
and Crawley Borough Council already have a Penalty Point Systems in place. 
 

3.7 How will it work? 
           

A flow chat of the complaint process can be seen in appendix 3. The process of 
investigating usually begins with the receipt of a formal complaint, the report may 
come from various sources, such as a passenger, other drivers, law enforcement 
agencies or members of the public or officers on enforcement duties. The complaint 
is evaluated to determine its credibility and seriousness. If the complaint appears to 
involve a potential offence or beach of regulation the investigation moves forward 
and further information is gathered, this may include witness statements, CCTV 
footage, photographs, documentation, or any other evidence that can shed light on 
the alleged offence.  The complainant, any witnesses and the driver may then be 
interviewed, with the aim to gather additional details, clarify any inconsistencies, and 
allow the involved parties to provide their side of the story.  
 
Based on the finding of the investigation, appropriate action is taken if the evidence 
supports that an offence has been committed. The specific consequences depend 
on the severity of the offence or breach and the applicable laws and regulations. 
Words of advice, warnings, additional relevant training, suspension, revocations, 
and legal prosecutions or the imposition of penalty points may be given. 
 
If penalty points are deemed to be appropriate this allows officers to allocate points 
depending upon the nature and severity of the alleged misdemeanor  
 
Penalty Points will remain current for 3 years for drivers and proprietors & 5 years 
for Operators from the date the points were issued. The period is on a roll forward 
basis, to allow any older points to be considered as spent and therefore excluded 
from the running total recorded against any individual licensee.  
 
Points issued to either the proprietor(s) of a vehicle, operator or a driver will be 
confirmed in writing. 
 
Where a licensee accumulates 12 penalty points in a current 3-year period for 
drivers and proprietors & 5 years for Operators period consideration will be made 
as to whether the driver is a fit and proper person to hold a licence. A decision will 
then be made as to whether the licence should be suspended or revoked. 

16



 

 

 
Appeals regarding the issuing of penalty points by Officers will be referred to the 
Regulatory Services Manager who has been independent of any investigation, this 
allows the drivers to present additional evidence or challenge the finding. The 
Regulatory Services Manager who will have discretion to award a lesser  number of 
points than displayed on the tariff if the complaint is upheld. Drivers must appeal 
any points issued by Officers to the Regulatory Services Manager in writing within 7 
days from the date of any points issued. There is no right of appeal against the 
awarding of points by the Regulatory Services Manager. The only recourse to a 
legal challenge is by way of judicial review.  
 
The system will operate without prejudice to the Council’s ability to take other action 
that it is entitled to take under legislation, byelaws, and regulations. However, if 
points are issued to a proprietor/driver for a matter which is also a criminal offence, 
e.g., bald tyres, no badge, those persons(s) will not then be the subject of a 
prosecution by the Council. 
 

3.8 The penalty point system allows officers to allocate points depending upon the 
nature and severity of the alleged misdemeanor. Where there is a scale of points 
the number of points issued will depend on the seriousness of the offence such as 
giving a false address, false names, Date of Birth, not declaring previous 
revocations or having been arrested as. An investigation will still take place. All 
options referred to above will still exist including, suspension, revocation or refusal. 
 

3.9 Penalty Points will remain current for 3 years for drivers and proprietors & 5 years 
for Operators from the date the points were allocated. The period is on a roll forward 
basis, so as to allow any older points to be considered as spent and therefore 
excluded from the running total recorded against any individual licensee. In effect 
on the 3 year or 5 year anniversary of points being awarded the numbers are re set. 

 
3.10 The majority of drivers who come to the notice of the council do so only the once. 

This system will act as an evidence gathering tool to identify a pattern of behaviour 
which will be taken into account when deciding if a person is a fit & proper person 
to hold a licence. Upon reaching the limit of allowed points (proposed to be 12 in 3 
years for drivers and proprietors and 12 in 5 years for operators) the driver/operator 
is reported consideration will be made as to whether ‘is he/she still a fit and proper 
person’. 
 

3.11 Disputes regarding the issuing of penalty points by officers will be referred to the 
Regulatory Services Manager. Drivers must appeal any points issued by Officers to 
the Regulatory Services Manager within 21 days of the points being issued. 
 

 

3.12 On the 17 November 2023 the Department for Transport published its updated Taxi 
and private hire vehicle licensing best practice guidance for licensing authorities in 
England. Best Practice Guidance  
 

3.13 The Best Practice Guidance refers to points-based systems such as the one 
proposed. 
 
5.5 Points-based enforcement systems 

17

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licensing-best-practice-guidance/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licensing-best-practice-guidance-for-licensing-authorities-in-england


 

 

To increase compliance with licensing requirements some licensing authorities 
operate a points-based system, which allows minor breaches of the rules to be 
recorded and considered in context, while referring those with persistent or serious 
breaches to the licensing committee (or other bodies charged with reviewing). Such 
systems can provide greater consistency in enforcement and make better use of the 
licensing committee’s time. Authorities that operate a points-based enforcement 
system should make clear to licensees that these are separate to the ‘penalty points’ 
(endorsements) that the courts can put on a motorist’s licence. As set out at 5.1, 
licensing authorities that use a points-based system should ensure that licensees 
are aware of the policies to which they must adhere, are properly informed of what 
is expected of them, and the repercussions for failing to do so - the points for specific 
breaches should be clearly set out. 
 
Where a points-based enforcement system is in operation points incurred should 
remain on the record for a fixed period. The usual duration of a driver and private 
hire vehicle operator licence is 3 and 5 years respectively. To ensure that all past 
behaviour is taken into account when considering whether to grant a new licence, 
the department recommends that points should remain on the record from the date 
of the incident for a minimum of 3 years for drivers and a minimum of 5 years for 
private hire vehicle operators. 
 
It should be noted that reaching a points limit must not result in an automatic action 
but should be used to trigger a review of the conduct of the licensee and whether 
further action is necessary to address any concerns. Such action might be 
undertaking additional training not just a suspension or revocation. Licensing 
authorities should however consider whether a review is undertaken in situations 
where points are incurred within a short period but have not reached a review point; 
for example, a rapid accumulation of points may indicate deteriorating standards or 
increasingly unsatisfactory conduct. 
 

3.13   In July 2020 the Government published the Statutory taxi and private hire vehicle 
standards Statutory taxi and private hire vehicle standards (updated November 
2022) These standards also recommends a penalty point system. 

 
           9.2 Setting expectations and monitoring 
 
           Licensing authorities should ensure that drivers are aware of the policies that they 

must adhere to and are properly informed of what is expected of them and the 
repercussions for failing to do so. Some licensing authorities operate a points- based 
system, which allows minor breaches to be recorded and considered in context 
while referring those with persistent or serious breaches to the licensing committee. 
This has the benefit of consistency in enforcement and makes better use of the 
licensing committee’s time. 

 
          The provision of a clear, simple and well-publicised process for the Public to make 

complaints about drivers and operators will enable authorities to target compliance 
and enforcement activity. This will provide a further source of intelligence when 
considering the renewal of licences and of any additional training that may be 
required. It is then for the licensing authority to consider if any intelligence indicates 
a need to suspend or revoke a licence in the interests of public safety.  

 

18

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards/statutory-taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-standards


 

 

 
 
 
Consultation 
 
4. Consultation has been undertaken through the Brighton & Hove Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire Consultation Forum, including meetings and submissions from 
representatives from the Taxi Forum, all licensed Drivers, Vehicle Proprietors and 
Operators as well as lead Councillors. Prior to the formal consultation Officers also 
held meetings with the trade where the system was discussed and amended as 
agreed 

 
4.1    The initial consultation was for Penalty Points to remain current for 2 years for drivers 

and proprietors & 2 years for Operators from the date the points were allocated. 
However, the Best Practice Guidance published after the consultation started 
recommends that points should remain on record for 3 years for drivers and 5 years 
for operators. Driver licences are granted for 3 years and Operator licences for 5 
years. Officers have decided to bring the Brighton & Hove system in line with this 
recommendation.  
 

4.2   The draft policy was emailed to all 1363 drivers, proprietors and operators for 
consultation which was open from the 02 October 2023 until 19 November 2023. 
This was later extended to the 01 December 2023. A total of 69 responses were 
received.  

 
4.3    The results of the consultation can be seen at Appendix 2. 5 were in favour of the 

system and 64 were against a large proportion of objections were identical. The 
biggest objection seems to be that drivers from other authorities would not be 
subject to the system. It should be noted that other local authorities in the vicinity of 
Brighton & Hove have their own penalty point systems. 

 
Sample of Consultation Responses – Objections  
 

 Driver Shortage: We are facing a shortage of new taxi drivers joining the Brighton & 
Hove taxi trade (they prefer to join Uber with fewer rules), and imposing penalty 
points could discourage individuals from entering or staying in the profession. 

 Unfairness: With the cross borders being in place, the Hackney Carriage officers 
have no enforcement powers over any cars coming from outside the city, allowing 
these outside drivers to get away with violations BH drivers will be punished for. 
This is unfair, and this proposal will only create more resentment towards the 
outside-the-city drivers, conflict and unfair treatment for the local taxis. This can also 
lead to disappointed customers who might think it is BH drivers who provided 
dissatisfactory service, when in reality it was out-of-city drivers. 

 Privacy infringement: Under The Proposal, the officers can stop any BH Hackney / 
Private Hire car at any time. As per the vehicle insurance, our cars can be used for 
private use (time with our families etc) and the vehicle can get messy (we might eat 
there or move furniture etc). During this time we are private citizens, and should be 
treated as such.  

 Complex Violations: Some violations by taxi drivers may involve complex 
circumstances or disputes, that are better addressed through arbitration or 
mediation, rather than a straightforward penalty points system. 

19



 

 

 Economic Impact: Considering the current economic impact on taxi drivers and the 
Council itself, The Proposal will cost money to implement, plus the excessive use of 
penalty points could lead to financial hardship for drivers. 

 Focus on Core Issues: The Council may prioritise addressing more significant 
issues in the taxi industry, such as safety concerns, vehicle standards, or customer 
service, and may choose to allocate resources accordingly. 

 Enhancing vehicle standards: By applying a Vehicle suitability test every 6 months, 
rather than waiting for the driver to commit an offence and issuing him a penalty 
point. 

 It is already implemented in British Law: If a driver commits a driving offence, he will 
be issued with penalty points by the Police and if it is serious, the driver will lose his 
driving licence and the taxi licence at the same time. 

 Blue Book: Brighton and Hove taxi trade rule book, aka ‘The Blue Book’ already 
requires a high level of performance from the Taxi Drivers, which sets us apart from 
the rest of the UK. 

 Monitoring and Improvement: The Council may opt for continuous monitoring and 
improvement programs for taxi services, where they work closely with drivers to 
identify and rectify issues without resorting to penalty points. 

 Educate and do not prosecute: Educating taxi drivers effectively through training 
courses, communication, online seminars and support as prevention, instead of 
waiting until the driver makes a mistake to be prosecuted. 

 Inconsistent Enforcement: The current application of penalty points (as per the Blue 
Book) appears to be inconsistent and sometimes arbitrary. Drivers often receive 
points for minor infractions that do not necessarily pose a threat to passenger safety. 

 Viability: There have been no viability studies or any statistical figures that have 
been raised by the Council to reflect that we have a problem that warrants this 
proposal. 

 Increased anxiety and stress: as professional drivers who spend our work shift 
behind the wheel, we already face more pressure than regular drivers; we ferry 
rowdy, drunk or ill passengers in all weather conditions, day or night, as well as 
navigating traffic and ever-changing roadworks. Coming to work worrying about 
receiving penalty points would make drivers more anxious and stressed, and this 
could lead to more accidents. 
 

Sample Consultation Responses – Supportive 
 

 It seems like a good idea but it would only fair if it applies to all drivers I mean to say 
the amount of out of city cars are operating in Brighton they outnumber Brighton 
registered vehicles, If it doesn’t apply to them then it is unfair. The way they drive in 
Brighton it is disrespectful I have seen them smoking in there vehicles  
I do agree the attitude of a very few drivers in Brighton are not up to standard this 
comes from the passengers I had picked which can only be true. 

 Will there be a Scale off thee offence minor offence *1 point as to severity off 
offences 1 point, 2 points, 3 points And so on. With severity off offence rather than 
making points up as you go along as each HCO officer may have there own opinion 
on points TO ISSUE. LIKE THE IDEA  

 I agree with the Penalty point scheme overall. I think dress code should be a part of 
the scheme you want to see some of them out there. I also agree that you have got 
to put up license fees. But more important than anything is you (we) have got to get 
these out-of-town cars out of Brighton some are Just taking the p. 

20



 

 

As I keep saying get them out of the bus lanes for a start If we go to London we are 
not allowed to go in bus Lanes Surely you must be able to talk to LEWES district 
Council about when they license these cars they ask where they're going to work 
because all they are doing is licensing them and they're coming straight into 
Brighton. I don't even mind about Uber Just as long as all the cars that work for them 
in Brighton are Brighton licensed. Sorry to be a pain But we have all got to be under 
the same umbrella 

 I believe this is a golden opportunity for enforcement at the front of Brighton station. 
There is no reason whatsoever why we can’t insist on one of the penalty point 
offences being ranking at the front of Brighton station. It has already been 
specifically for bitten by HCO VIA THE LETTER SENT OUT TO EVERY DRIVER. I 
appreciate it has been difficult to enforce. Maybe two or three points penalty for 
ranking at the front of the station would be an easy enforcement method 

 
 
 4.4   Despite objections officers believe that the system should be implemented to increase 

compliance with licensing requirements to allow minor breaches of the rules to be 
recorded and considered in context, while referring those with persistent or serious 
breaches for a review of their licence. Officers believe that the system would a 
provide greater consistency in enforcement and make better use of Officer time. The 
system will help to uphold professional standards within the taxi trade fostering a 
sense of accountability among drivers and passengers alike. Overall the penalty 
point system would play a crucial role in regulating and maintaining the integrity of 
the taxi trade making if a valuable tool promoting public safety and driver 
professionalism. 

 
4.5    Officers have also amended the list of offences and suggested points to be awarded 

against them following the consultation process. The final table can be seen at 
Appendix 1 

 
5. Analysis and consideration of alternative options  
 
5.1 The Licensing Committee could decide to just rely on the enforcement of the 

statutory legislation in relation to Hackney Carriages and Private Hire. However due 
to the age and prescriptive nature of this legislation this would be resource intensive 
and it is suggested should only be used in the most serious cases. 

 
  
6. Conclusion 

 
6.1 The aim of this policy is to improve the levels of compliance with licensing 

regulations and requirements and to help raise standards, improve safety and 
enhance the protection of members of the public affected by the actions of licensed 
drivers, operators and vehicle proprietors as recommended in the Governments 
Best Practice Guidance and Statutory Guidance. 
 

6.2 The Council is committed to ensure that only fit and proper persons become, and 
remain, as hackney carriage and private hire drivers, operators and vehicle 
proprietors. 
 

21



 

 

6.3 The procedure also seeks to improve the level of transparency and consistency in 
which the licensing system is administered and enforced. 

 
7. Financial implications 

 
7.1 There are no immediate financial implications contained in this report. Members 

should note that any additional resourcing issues requiring funding would have to 
be funded through the taxi licensing regime and would not therefore impact on 
council tax payers.  

 
Name of finance officer consulted: Michael Bentley Date consulted: 22/01/24 

 
8. Legal implications 
 

Penalty Point schemes are recognised in the Department for Transport Best 
Practice Guidance as well as caselaw and are used by other authorities. The 
proposed scheme is in line with the Best Practice Guidance.  
Name of lawyer consulted: Rebecca Sidell Date consulted (15/01/24) 

 
9. Equalities implications 
 
9.1 Under the Equality Act 2010, Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, a public authority 

must have due regard to the need to:  

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under this Act,  

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it, and  

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it.  
 

9.2      An Equalities impact assessment regarding the scheme has been undertaken. 
 
10. Sustainability implications 
 
10.1 No direct carbon/environmental impacts arising from the recommendations. 
 
11. Other Implications  
 

Crime & disorder implications:  
 
11.1 The aim of this policy is to improve the levels of compliance with licensing 

regulations and requirements and to help raise standards, improve safety and 
enhance the protection of members of the public affected by the actions of licensed 
drivers, operators and vehicle proprietors. 

 
 

Supporting Documentation 
 

1. Appendices  
 
1. Penalty Point System 

22



 

 

2. Consultation Responses  
3.  Flow Chart 

 
 
 
 
 

 

23



24



 

Brighton & Hove City Council Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Penalty Point Scheme 
 
Introduction 
 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Operators, Drivers and Vehicles are principally governed by 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Town Police Clauses Act 1847, 
Council’s Byelaws and the Rules, Regulations and Conditions set by the Licensing Committee. 
 
The aim of the penalty point scheme is to regulate and ensure the safety, quality, and fairness of 
taxi services. It is used to monitor and enforce compliance with regulations and conditions and to 
provide the public and licenced drivers operators and proprietors with a professional service. 
 
It provides a formalised stepped enforcement plan to help those providing taxi services to learn 
from their mistakes to improve customer satisfaction and maintain a safe and profession service. 

 
How will it work? 
 
The process of investigating usually begins with the receipt of a formal complaint, the report may 
come from various sources, such as a passenger, other drivers, law enforcement agencies, 
members of the public or Officers on enforcement duties. The complaint is evaluated to 
determine its credibility and seriousness. If the complaint appears to involve a potential offence or 
beach of regulation the investigation moves forward and further information is gathered, this may 
include witness statements, CCTV footage, photographs, documentation, or any other evidence 
that can shed light on the alleged offence.  The complainant, any witnesses and the driver may 
then be interviewed, with the aim is to gather additional details, clarify any inconsistencies, and 
allow the involved parties to provide their side of the story.  
 
Based on the finding of the investigation, appropriate action is taken if the evidence supports that 
an offence has been committed. The specific consequences depend on the severity of the 
offence or breach and the applicable laws and regulations. Words of advice, warnings, additional 
relevant training, suspension, revocations, and legal prosecutions. 
 
If penalty points are deemed to be appropriate this allows officers to allocate points depending 
upon the nature and severity of the alleged misdemeanour  
 
Penalty Points will remain current for 3 years for drivers and proprietors & 5 years for Operators 
from the date the points were issued. The period is on a roll forward basis, to allow any older 
points to be considered as spent and therefore excluded from the running total recorded against 
any individual licensee.  
 
Points issued to either the proprietor(s) of a vehicle, operator or a driver will be confirmed in 
writing. 
 
Where a licensee accumulates 12 penalty points in a current 3-year period for drivers and 
proprietors & 5 years for Operators period consideration will be made as to whether the driver is 
a fit and proper person to hold a licence. A decision will then be made as to whether the licence 
should be suspended or revoked 
 
Appeals regarding the issuing of penalty points by Officers will be referred to the Regulatory 
Services Manager who has been independent of any investigation, this allows the drivers to 

25



 

present additional evidence or challenge the finding. The Regulatory Services Manager who will 
have discretion to award a lesser or greater number of points than displayed on the tariff if the 
complaint is upheld. Drivers must appeal any points issued by Officers to the Regulatory Services 
Manager in writing within 7 days from the date of any points issued. There is no right of appeal 
against the awarding of points by the Regulatory Services Manager. The only recourse to a legal 
challenge is by way of judicial review.  
 
The system will operate without prejudice to the Council’s ability to take other action that it is 
entitled to take under legislation, byelaws, and regulations. 
 
If points are issued to a proprietor/driver for a matter which is also a criminal offence, e.g., bald 
tyres, no badge, those persons(s) will not then be the subject of a prosecution by the Council.  
 
If a licence holder has had their licence revoked, they may apply for a new licence, but its Council policy 
that such an application under the Penalty Point Scheme will not be entertained until a suitable period 
from the date of revocation has elapsed, as detailed below:  

i. where the penalty points which resulted in the revocation included any infringements that attracted 
10 or more points, then this period will be 24 months.  

      ii. where none of the infringements individually attracted more than 10 points, then this period is 
reduced to twelve months. 

 
 

  
Details of the misconduct 

Points 
Applicable 

Driver Vehicle 
Proprietor  

 
Operator 

1 Providing false or misleading information on 
licence application form / failing to provide 
relevant information 

6-12    

2 Failure to notify, in writing, the Council of 
change of address within 7 calendar days 

3    

3 Refusal to accept hiring without reasonable 
cause e.g., Drunk, or rude customer  

3-12    

4 Unreasonable prolongation of journeys or any 
misconduct regarding the charging of fares 

3    

5 Plying for hire by Private hire drivers 
6    

6 Using unlicensed vehicle or vehicle without 
insurance 

12    

7 Failure to produce relevant documents with 
timescale when requested by an Authorised 
Officer 

3    

8 Unsatisfactory condition of vehicle, interior or 
exterior 

3    

9 Private hire vehicle – No door signs displayed. 
 

3    

10 Failure to provide proof of insurance cover 
when requested or have a current copy in 
vehicle 

3    

11 Failure to produce Hackney Carriage or Private 
Hire vehicle for testing when required such as 
for an interim check 

3    

12 Knowingly using a vehicle subject to a 
suspension order issued by an Authorised 

12    

 

26



 

Officer or a police officer 

13 Knowingly using a vehicle for which the licence 
has been suspended or revoked 

12    

14 Failure to report within 72 hours, any accident 
or damage materially affecting the safety, 
performance, or appearance of the vehicle  

3    

15 Carrying more passengers than stated on the 
vehicle licence 

6    

16 Failure to display external/internal licence or 
plate 

3    

17 Carrying an offensive weapon in the vehicle 
12    

18 Failure to notify transfer of Private Hire or 
Hackney Carriage vehicle licence 

3    

19 Displaying unauthorised or inappropriate sited 
signs or advertisements in or on the vehicle 

3    

20 Using an unauthorised roof light 
3    

 
 

  
Offence/Breach of Condition 

Points 
Applicable 

Driver Vehicle 
Proprietor 

 
Operator 

21 Failure to produce on request records of 
drivers’ work activity 

3    

22 Using a non approved or non-calibrated 
taximeter (HC) 

3    

23 Obstruction of an authorised officer or police 
officer  

12    

24 Evidence of the driver or passengers smoking 
in vehicle 

3    

25 Drivers must not eat or drink whilst carrying 
passengers 

3    

26 Displaying any feature on private hire vehicle 
that may suggest that it is a taxi (Private Hire) 

6    

27 Using a vehicle, the appearance of which 
suggests that it is a Taxi 

6    

28 Failure to carry an assistance dog without 
requisite medical exemption certificate 

12    

29 Driver not holding a current DVLA licence 
12    

30 Failure to wear driver’s badge 
1    

31 Failure to notify, in writing, of any medical 
conditions which impacts your ability to drive 

6    

32 Unsatisfactory appearance of driver as 
described in the Blue Book 

3    

33 Failure to observe rank discipline (HC) 
3    

34 Failure to maintain proper records of private 
hire vehicles and drivers 

6    

27



 

35 Failure to keep or produce records of Private 
Hire bookings or other documents required to 
be kept or produced 

6    

36 Misleading use of the words ‘Taxi’ on 
advertising materials 

3    

37 Failure to return vehicle internal/external 
licence plate within 7 days after due notice 
following expiry, revocation, or suspensions of 
such licence 

3    

38 Failure to notify the Council in writing, of any 
motoring or criminal convictions within 7 days 
or conviction or cautions during period of 
current licence 

6    

39 Failure to behave in a civil and orderly manner 
including unprofessional conduct between 
drivers, proprietors, or operator 

3    

40 Failure to display a correct tariff card (HC) 
3    

 
 
 

  
Offence/Breach of Condition 

Points 
Applicable 

Driver Vehicle 
Proprietor 

Operator 

41 Failure to attend punctually at appointed time 
and place without sufficient cause (Such as for 
Licence Interviews or to download CCTV as 
requested etc) 

3    

42 A licensed vehicle with a defective tyre 
3 per tyre    

43 Failure to comply with any other driver, vehicle, 
or operator licence conditions. 

3    

44 Waiting or stopping on double yellow lines, or 
stop on private land (without the owner’s 
permission) unless requested by a paying 
customer or in any other busy area such as 
Brighton Station, Seafront, Pubs and Clubs etc  

3    

45 Driving whilst using a non-hands-free mobile 
phone 

12    

46 Leaving a licensed vehicle unattended on Taxi 
rank 

3    

47 Private hire vehicle parking in a prominent 
position such as on a hackney carriage stand 
or within line of sight of a hackney carriage 
stand Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
vehicles standing or waiting in prominent areas 
such as Brighton Railway Station, the Sea 
Front when not picking up or dropping off 
passengers 

6    

48 Not having a current Compliance Certificate 
12    

49 CCTV system deliberately turned off, cameras 
tampered with, recordings deleted or 
downloaded by someone other than an 

6    

28



 

approved Data Processor. 

50 Failure to have a working card payment 
machine available in a hackney carriage 
vehicle 

3    

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

29



30



Consultation Responses – Penalty Point Scheme 

 

1. Will these proposed penalties also apply to out of town vehicles, or 

just licenced Brighton & Hove vehicles?  

2. Propose Taxis Penalty Point Scheme wasn’t at all supported in TAXI 
FORUM MEETING. what licensing committee doing now by sending 
individual emails to all the drivers it’s completely illegal. I do not support 
this above proposal. 

3. Hi I would like to share my thoughts regarding this policy  
It seems like a good idea but it would only fair if it applies to all 
drivers I mean to say the amount of out of city cars are operating in 
Brighton they outnumber Brighton registered vehicles, 
If it doesn’t apply to them then it is unfair. 
The way they drive in Brighton it is disrespectful  
I have seen them smoking in there vehicles  
I do agree the attitude of a very few drivers in Brighton are not up to 
standard this comes from the passengers I had picked which can 
only be true. 
Thanks for your attention 

4. GMB are a national general trade union, with over 600,000 members 

who are either users or workers within the transport sector across the 

UK. 

This response comes from GMB Southern Region where we have 
around 90,000 members who are comprised of many different 
industries including those who drive buses, taxis, private hire vehicles 
and ambulances or who work in road freight and distribution. 
Overall, GMB recognises the important role a safety policy provides 
but is clear in its belief that a policy must be inclusive of the 
protections afforded to Taxi and Private Hire drivers and their rights. 
Brighton & Hove City Council Hackney Carriage & Private Hire 
Penalty Point Scheme  
Brighton & Hove City Council has a long history of having the highest 
standards in terms of licensing policies and procedures. For instance, 
ensuring the safety of passengers and the general public, as well as 
granting licensed drivers fairness and flexibility. Such should be 
celebrated, the licensing department and councillors of Brighton & 
Hove should be proud of its rich history of high standards. 
GMB Union recognise the requirement for passenger safety and 
safeguarding however on Penalty Point Scheme, GMB emphatically 
disagree with this plan and feel that bias could be visited upon drivers 
and that there may not be the same proportionality in each instance 
leading to targeting of individual drivers.  
GMB Union are also disappointed to find the Penalty Points Scheme 
does not recognise/mention driver protections and safety or speak to 
driver health or mental health issues that drivers face. 
 

31



Using a system that is intended to punish is not viable as a policy 
especially when it is subjective. And the fact that externally licensed 
drivers working locally would not be subject to the same system may 
drive drivers away. Ultimately this scheme will fail and not deliver 
what you are trying to achieve, instead resulting in losing control of 
the city and safety of riders/Brighton & Hove residents with more out 
of town cars with weak safety measures. 
Up and down the country we see so many pointless conditions 
applied to Taxi and Private Hire Drivers & vehicles and this scheme is 
one of them. Such baseless and unfair conditions are already 
pushing people away from this vital trade. We are seeing shortages 
of drivers in many cities and lack of driver availability is causing 
difficulty for the public getting transportation. Without drivers you 
have no safety, especially at night when lack of buses and other 
transport is limited for safe travel home. 
GMB recommendation to Brighton & Hove City Council is not to go 
ahead with the consultation, scrap the whole plan and work with the 
trade to identify areas of concerns and make improvement(s) based 
on current standards/rules that you already have in place and these 
are GOOD standards. 
GMB Union will be reaching out to its members in coming weeks, in 
making preparations for campaigns & pushing back against any such 
move in regards to the scheme and pointless consultation. What we 
see is yet more attacks on working people and running tick box 
exercises and no proper real change when it comes to protecting ALL 
parts of the trade. 
This response has been produced on behalf of GMB Southern 

Region 

5. Will there be a Scale off thee offence minor offence *1 point as to 
severity off offences   
1 point 
2 points  
3 points  
And so on  
With severity off offence rather than making points up as you go 
along as each HCO officer may have there own opinion on points TO 
ISSUE  
LIKE THE IDEA  

6. I agree with the Penalty point scheme overall  

I think dress code should be a part of the scheme you want to see 
some of them out there  

I also agree that you have got to put up license fees  

But more important than anything is you (we) have got to get these 
out-of-town cars out of Brighton some are Just taking the p 

32



As I keep saying get them out of the bus lanes for a start  

If we go to London we are not allowed to go in bus Lanes  

Surely you must be able to talk to LEWES district Council about when 
they license these cars they ask where they're going to work because 
all they are doing is licensing them and they're coming straight into 
Brighton  

I don't even mind about Uber Just as long as all the cars that work for 
them in Brighton are  

Brighton licensed  

Sorry to be a pain  

But we have all got to be under the same umbrella  

7. Dear sir /madam 
I am a private hire taxi driver badge number xxxx As I am fit and proper 
taxi driver  I disagree with taxi penalty scheme because I fully obey the 
regulations of the road traffic and the safety of other drivers and roads 
regulations 

8. I believe this is a golden opportunity for enforcement at the front of 
Brighton station. There is no reason whatsoever why we can’t insist 
on one of the penalty point offences being ranking at the front of 
Brighton station. It has already been specifically for bitten by HCO 
VIA THE LETTER SENT OUT TO EVERY DRIVER. I appreciate it 
has been difficult to enforce.  
Maybe two or three points penalty for ranking at the front of the 
station would be an easy enforcement method. 
I’m sure there will be further feedback from myself and others in the 

meantime. Just wanted to get the above off my chest sooner rather 

than later :-). 

9. My comment on this is a worry that it will be used to bully some 

drivers while those protected by large organisations will have much 

more leeway. 

`I would like to suggest the appeal be looked at by other drivers ,to 

give a proper independent appeal. 

I recently found out Brighton Council paid over £50K to a drunk 

passenger who wasn’t wearing a seat belt as an unlicensed person 

was driving a hackney taxi 

If such a owner can’t keep their licensed taxi from falling into the 

hands of someone not licensed ,they would have lost their licence.If 

this isn’t worth 24 points im not sure what does, and why was the 

claim made against the council not the drivers insurance.Is this 

true?How was no action taken against the owner if not. 

But we will find petty reasons to allow members of the public to report 

33



drivers other drivers to carry out vendettas ,where we have no legal 

recourse against them. 

I feel the process is already in law without the need for further 

legislation just to have us live with threats of unlimited reasons and is 

open to abuse and bullying  

10.  I am writing to reject this proposal. 

Brighton and Hove have some of the most stringent rules and 

regulations by implementing the Blue Book, this provides a high level 

of performance that sets us apart from the rest of the UK. 

The hackney carriage officers who monitor the rules have the ability 

to act immediately if they deem it necessary. These officers are 

already overworked with the number of cars that they have to 

monitor, why add more work for no benefit? 

With the cross borders being open the hackney carriage officers have 

no enforcement powers over any cars coming from different county’s, 

this is unfair as they are working in my town and do not have to obey 

the applicable laws that are already in place – this proposal will only 

create more conflict – we haven’t even resolved the issue with the 

differing CCTV requirements (especially in the home to school 

transport between Brighton and Hove and Lewes council) because 

the criteria is different. 

It is not fair to subject our drivers to this while other drivers can do 

what they want in our town, and no one can say anything to them. 

There have been no visibility studies or any statistical figures that 

have been raised by the council to reflect that we have a problems 

that warrant this proposal. 

Due to all the above I would like to voice my rejection to the above 

proposal. 

 

11. 
x15 

I am writing to reject this proposal due to the fact that our Blue Book  
provides a high level of performance that sets us apart from the rest 
of the UK. 
 
With the cross borders being in place the hackney carriage officers 
have no enforcement powers over any cars coming from out of city 
this is unfair as they are working in my city and do not have to obey 
the applicable laws that are already in place – this proposal will only 
create more conflict and unfair treatment for the local taxis 
 
It is very harsh to subject our drivers to this while other drivers can do 
what they want in our city and no one can say anything to them. 
 

34



There have been no visibility studies or any statistical figures that 
have been raised by the council to reflect that we have a problems 
that warrant this proposal. 
 
Due to all the above I would like to voice my rejection to the above 
proposal. 
 

12. Response to the consultation on the taxi and PH Penalty Points 

Scheme 

Having fully engaged with licensing officers, following the publication 
of the initial draft, I can confirm that I support the proposals/scheme 
in the latest draft. 
It’s worth pointing out, before I detail why I support the proposals, that 
what officers are proposing is nothing new. They are not requesting 
councillors to re-invent the wheel. The Penalty Points Scheme is 
being used in over a hundred councils, some of them for the best part 
of 30 years. It has been approved by the Department of Transport, 
the Local Government Association, and the Law Commission. It even 
gained judicial approval in the case of Singh v Cardiff City Council in 
2012.  
It will have little or no effect on the vast majority of license 
holders 
It will come as no surprise to officers and councillors that the vast 
majority of license holders are, as the law requires them to be, fit and 
proper. It is my view that at least 95% of the trade will never get a 
point. Most rarely have any contact with officers, other than when 
relicensing. Of the other 5%, most will mend their ways once they 
realised what the outcome could be if they breach their licensing 
requirements, and the few that don’t behave deserve not to be called 
fit and proper anymore. 
Transparency and Clarity  
Most licensed drivers have never read the licensing Blue Book, that’s 
not a criticism of them, merely a fact. They rely on the very few 
drivers that have. The proposed scheme reduces the 100 pages of 
the Blue Book down to 3 or 4 pages of A4.  
For a significant number of licensed drivers English is their second 
language, therefore reducing 100 pages of legal speak to 3 or 4 
pages of A4 is a huge positive step forward in helping those drivers 
understand the requirements of the council, and the law.  
Stopping drivers breach licensing requirements (such as reporting in 

good time to the council following an accident) due to their naivety is 

a win win situation in my view.  

It’s also worth remembering that every single requirement in the 
proposed Penalty Points Scheme already exists, there is nothing new 
being proposed. They have been put in place by a number of 
licensing committees over the last 40 years in respect of private hire 
requirements, and over 150 years in respect of taxi bylaws.  
 

35



Economic Impact 
It has been suggested by those opposed to the Penalty Points 
Scheme that it’s adoption would cause significant financial hardship. I 
do not share those concerns. In fact, I’m struggling to see any 
negative financial aspects to the proposed scheme. Maybe keeping 
your car clean is now considered by some to be a negative impact.  
In my opinion the only negative impact that’s being mentioned is by 
those suggesting two taxi tests a year as an alternative to the Penalty 
Points Scheme. This suggestion will negatively affect 100% of the 
trade, down solely to the unlawful actions of a small minority of 
drivers who really don’t care. Not fair in my view. 
Appeals Process  
Under the existing enforcement process any license holder that is 
found to have breached their licensing requirements, and is 
aggrieved by that, has no option other than to appeal to the courts.  
This is increasingly costly and long winded, both for the license 
holder and the council. I welcome the inclusion of an internal appeal 
process in the proposed Penalty Points Scheme. It is a major step 
forward.  
Driver Shortages  
A few trade reps opposed to the Penalty Points Scheme have 
suggested that it will lead to driver shortages.  
Two things come to mind. Firstly, that this scheme hasn’t restricted 
the number of drivers licensed by Lewes District Council, who 
according to the information passed on by Mr Peters, show an 
increase of 1000% in the last ten years or so. Secondly, if an 
applicant is concerned about this scheme enough to be put off from 
licensing in B&&H then one must wonder if that person is really 
someone we want in our trade. 
In conclusion I wish to commend officers for the time they have taken 
in bringing forward this proposal, and the openness they have shown 
in listening to those who had concerns at some of the 
recommendations.  
Dealing with license holders that breach licensing requirements is no 

easy task, and if officers believe this scheme will help them keep the 

residents and visitors to our city safer, then I for one will fully support 

giving them the required tools to carry out that task. 

13. I am writing this email on behalf of Utda. United Taxi Drivers 
Association strongly opposes to implement this scheme. 
Reason: 
1/ Hackney Carriage and private hire operators, drivers and vehicles 
are principally governed by the local government(miscellaneous 
provisions)act 1976, town police clauses act 1847, councils by laws 
and rules, regulation and conditions set by the licensing Committee 
which already covers all code of conduct or breach of conditions. This 
scheme will put additional pressure on drivers on their day to day 
work which will impact their livelihood whereas the cost of living is 
already a top concern nationwide. 

36



2/ There will be a high possibility of misuse of this scheme by the 
officers, drivers may be subjected of humiliation depending on nature 
of individual manner rather than law enforcement. 
3/ If Brighton and Hove Hackney Carriage office implement this 
scheme, it will be applicable only for the driver, proprietors and 
operators licensed by BCCC, but vehicles and drivers are working in 
this city licensed by other councils. In that case, Brighton and Hove 
drivers will fall into unfair competition whereas we are already victims 
of multiple hassles caused by  the drivers of other councils. also, 
different rules cannot be applicable for different drivers. 
4/ OFFENCE/BREACH of condition no 35 or 42 can be used to 
subject any driver, proprietor of unfair practice and put them into a 
legal battle to get their right back which  will severely impact their 
livelihood. Doors of discrimination will be open by implementing this 
scheme. 
5/ This penalty point scheme will simply be a additional hassle for 
drivers, proprietors of vehicles and spreaded out a fear within the 
trade that more injustices are upcoming.  
6/ Finally implementing the rules will discriminate against the Brighton 

taxi licence holders. For example, an Uber driver/licence holder from 

a different council who comes from out of town will not have to 

comply with these rules because their council has not adopted the 

same ones. 

14. I am writing to express my deep concern and disappointment 
regarding the proposed Penalty Points System applying to the taxi 
drivers in Brighton and Hove.  

I believe the Proposal could cause significant challenges and 
hardships for many hardworking taxi drivers in our community. 
While I understand the importance of maintaining high standards and 
ensuring passenger safety, I believe that the proposed penalty points 
system may be excessively punitive and does not take into account 
the unique circumstances that taxi drivers often face. As members of 
our local community, taxi drivers provide an essential service, and 
they play a crucial role in our city's transportation network. 
My concerns and those of many others in our community are as 
follows: 

1. Driver Shortage: We are facing a shortage of new taxi drivers 
joining the Brighton & Hove taxi trade (they prefer to join Uber with 
fewer rules), and imposing penalty points could discourage 
individuals from entering or staying in the profession. 

2. Unfairness: With the cross borders being in place, the Hackney 
Carriage officers have no enforcement powers over any cars coming 
from outside the city, allowing these outside drivers to get away with 
violations BH drivers will be punished for. This is unfair, and this 
proposal will only create more resentment towards the outside-the-
city drivers, conflict and unfair treatment for the local taxis. This can 
also lead to disappointed customers who might think it is BH drivers 

37



who provided dissatisfactory service, when in reality it was out-of-city 
drivers. 

3. Privacy infringement: Under The Proposal, the officers can stop 
any BH Hackney / Private Hire car at any time. However, as per the 
vehicle insurance, our cars can be used for private use (time with our 
families etc) and the vehicle can get messy (we might eat there or 
move furniture etc). During this time we are private citizens, and 
should be treated as such.  

4. Complex Violations: Some violations by taxi drivers may involve 
complex circumstances or disputes, that are better addressed 
through arbitration or mediation, rather than a straightforward penalty 
points system. 

5. Economic Impact: Considering the current economic impact on taxi 
drivers and the Council itself, The Proposal will cost money to 
implement, plus the excessive use of penalty points could lead to 
financial hardship for drivers. 

6. Focus on Core Issues: The Council may prioritise addressing more 
significant issues in the taxi industry, such as safety concerns, 
vehicle standards, or customer service, and may choose to allocate 
resources accordingly. 

7. Enhancing vehicle standards: By applying a Vehicle suitability test 
every 6 months, rather than waiting for the driver to commit an 
offence and issuing him a penalty point. 

8. It is already implemented in British Law: If a driver commits a 
driving offence, he will be issued with penalty points by the Police 
and if it is serious, the driver will lose his driving licence and the taxi 
licence at the same time. 

9. Blue Book: Brighton and Hove taxi trade rule book, aka ‘The Blue 
Book’ already requires a high level of performance from the Taxi 
Drivers, which sets us apart from the rest of the UK. 

10. Monitoring and Improvement: The Council may opt for continuous 
monitoring and improvement programs for taxi services, where they 
work closely with drivers to identify and rectify issues without 
resorting to penalty points. 

11. Educate and do not prosecute: Educating taxi drivers effectively 
through training courses, communication, online seminars and 
support as prevention, instead of waiting until the driver makes a 
mistake to be prosecuted. 

12. Inconsistent Enforcement: The current application of penalty 
points (as per the Blue Book) appears to be inconsistent and 
sometimes arbitrary. Drivers often receive points for minor infractions 
that do not necessarily pose a threat to passenger safety. 

13. Viability: There have been no viability studies or any statistical 
figures that have been raised by the Council to reflect that we have a 
problem that warrants this proposal. 

38



14. Increased anxiety and stress: as professional drivers who spend 
our work shift behind the wheel, we already face more pressure than 
regular drivers; we ferry rowdy, drunk or ill passengers in all weather 
conditions, day or night, as well as navigating traffic and ever-
changing roadworks. Coming to work worrying about receiving 
penalty points would make drivers more anxious and stressed, and 
this could lead to more accidents. 

Due to all the above I would like to voice my rejection to the above 
proposal. 

15. 
X 36 

I, am writing to express my deep concern and disappointment 
regarding the proposed Penalty Points System applying to the taxi 
drivers in Brighton and Hove.  

I believe the Proposal could cause significant challenges and 
hardships for many hardworking taxi drivers in our community. 
While I understand the importance of maintaining high standards and 
ensuring passenger safety, I believe that the proposed penalty points 
system may be excessively punitive and does not take into account 
the unique circumstances that taxi drivers often face. As members of 
our local community, taxi drivers provide an essential service, and 
they play a crucial role in our city's transportation network. 
My concerns and those of many others in our community are as 
follows: 

1. Driver Shortage: We are facing a shortage of new taxi drivers 
joining the Brighton & Hove taxi trade (they prefer to join Uber with 
fewer rules), and imposing penalty points could discourage 
individuals from entering or staying in the profession. 

2. Unfairness: With the cross borders being in place, the Hackney 
Carriage officers have no enforcement powers over any cars coming 
from outside the city, allowing these outside drivers to get away with 
violations BH drivers will be punished for. This is unfair, and this 
proposal will only create more resentment towards the outside-the-
city drivers, conflict and unfair treatment for the local taxis. This can 
also lead to disappointed customers who might think it is BH drivers 
who provided dissatisfactory service, when in reality it was out-of-city 
drivers. 

3. Privacy infringement: Under The Proposal, the officers can stop 
any BH Hackney / Private Hire car at any time. However, as per the 
vehicle insurance, our cars can be used for private use (time with our 
families etc) and the vehicle can get messy (we might eat there or 
move furniture etc). During this time we are private citizens, and 
should be treated as such.  

4. Complex Violations: Some violations by taxi drivers may involve 
complex circumstances or disputes, that are better addressed 
through arbitration or mediation, rather than a straightforward penalty 
points system. 

5. Economic Impact: Considering the current economic impact on taxi 
drivers and the Council itself, The Proposal will cost money to 

39



implement, plus the excessive use of penalty points could lead to 
financial hardship for drivers. 

6. Focus on Core Issues: The Council may prioritise addressing more 
significant issues in the taxi industry, such as safety concerns, 
vehicle standards, or customer service, and may choose to allocate 
resources accordingly. 

7. Enhancing vehicle standards: By applying a Vehicle suitability test 
every 6 months, rather than waiting for the driver to commit an 
offence and issuing him a penalty point. 

8. It is already implemented in British Law: If a driver commits a 
driving offence, he will be issued with penalty points by the Police 
and if it is serious, the driver will lose his driving licence and the taxi 
licence at the same time. 

9. Blue Book: Brighton and Hove taxi trade rule book, aka ‘The Blue 
Book’ already requires a high level of performance from the Taxi 
Drivers, which sets us apart from the rest of the UK. 

10. Monitoring and Improvement: The Council may opt for continuous 
monitoring and improvement programs for taxi services, where they 
work closely with drivers to identify and rectify issues without 
resorting to penalty points. 

11. Educate and do not prosecute: Educating taxi drivers effectively 
through training courses, communication, online seminars and 
support as prevention, instead of waiting until the driver makes a 
mistake to be prosecuted. 

12. Inconsistent Enforcement: The current application of penalty 
points (as per the Blue Book) appears to be inconsistent and 
sometimes arbitrary. Drivers often receive points for minor infractions 
that do not necessarily pose a threat to passenger safety. 

13. Viability: There have been no viability studies or any statistical 
figures that have been raised by the Council to reflect that we have a 
problem that warrants this proposal. 

14. Increased anxiety and stress: as professional drivers who spend 
our work shift behind the wheel, we already face more pressure than 
regular drivers; we ferry rowdy, drunk or ill passengers in all weather 
conditions, day or night, as well as navigating traffic and ever-
changing roadworks. Coming to work worrying about receiving 
penalty points would make drivers more anxious and stressed, and 
this could lead to more accidents. 

Due to all the above I would like to voice my rejection to the above 
proposal. 

16. 1/ Hackney Carriage and private hire operators, drivers and vehicles 

are principally governed by the local government(miscellaneous 

provisions)act 1976, town police clauses act 1847, councils by laws 

and rules, regulation and conditions set by the licensing Committee 

which already covers all code of conduct or breach of conditions. This 

40



scheme will put additional pressure on drivers on their day to day 

work which will impact their livelihood whereas the cost of living is 

already a top concern nationwide. 

2/ There will be a high possibility of misuse of this scheme by the 
officers, drivers may be subjected of humiliation depending on nature 
of  individual manner rather than law enforcement. 
3/ If Brighton and Hove Hackney Carriage office implement this 
scheme, it will be applicable only for the driver, proprietors and 
operators licensed by BCCC, but vehicles and drivers are working in 
this city licensed by other councils. In that case , Brighton and Hove 
drivers will fall into unfair competition whereas we are already victims 
of  multiple  hassles caused by  the drivers of other councils. also, 
different rules cannot be applicable for different drivers. 
4/ OFFENCE/BREACH of condition no 35 or 42 can be  used to 
subject any driver, proprietor of unfair practice and put them into a 
legal battle to get their right back  which  will severely impact their 
livelihood. Doors of discrimination will be open by  implementing this 
scheme. 
5/ This penalty point scheme will simply be a additional hassle for 
drivers, proprietors of vehicles and spreaded out a fear  within the 
trade that more injustices are upcoming. 
6/ Finally implementing the rules will discriminate against the Brighton 

taxi licence holders. For example, an Uber driver/licence holder from 

a different council who comes from out of town will not have to 

comply with these rules because their council has not adopted the 

same ones. 

17. I personally have not seen any driver who has indicated a positive 

response from your this penalty point system.. I feel like we are 

treated like do as you are told because our voices are not been heard 

and our opinion doesn't matter..  

Personally, I absolutely love my job and very passionate about it but 

the same time am increasingly feel scared, vulnerable and voiceless 

... 

18. Without knowing the exact numbers there seems to be as many 

Lewes and Chichester cabs working in the city will they be penalised 

under this new point system .If not Brighton cabs who pay into the 

city will be penalised and the out of town will do as they please 

because the rules will not concern them .I have regularly seen out of 

town cars sitting on hackney stands and hanging round the station 

surely if we're being brought to task they should be penalised under 

the same rules . This would be one of the obvious concerns I see as I 

notice these parking issues on a regular basis. Personally I'm not in 

favour of the proposed system as I think we're regulated enough but I 

41



thought I'd put my concerns forward. Thanks for the chance to reply 

to your email  

 

 
  

 

42



1 | P a g e  
Rejection of the proposed Penalty Points System 

Dear Brighton & Hove City Council, Hackney Carriage Office. 

We, Brighton and Hove Taxi, Private Hire and Operators Trade Forum-BTPOTDF- 

1-Brighron and hove middle East Taxi Forum.  

2-Arab Taxi Association.  

3-Brighton Station Association.  

4-Afghan Taxi Forum. 

5-UTDA  

6-BSTF. 

7-BSF(Cabbies Corner). 

8-Radio Cabs. 

9-StreamLine. 

10-City Cabs. 

11-Taxi 4You. 

12- Independent Hackney. 

13-Brighton Uber Drivers.  

are writing to express my deep concern and disappointment regarding the proposed 
Penalty Points System applying to the taxi drivers in Brighton and Hove.  

We believe the Proposal could cause significant challenges and hardships for 
many hardworking taxi drivers in our community. 
While We understand the importance of maintaining high standards and ensuring 
passenger safety, We believe that the proposed penalty points system may be 
excessively punitive and does not take into account the unique circumstances that 
taxi drivers often face. As members of our local community, taxi drivers provide an 
essential service, and they play a crucial role in our city's transportation network. 
Our concerns and those of many others in our community are as follows: 

1. Driver Shortage: We are facing a shortage of new taxi drivers joining the 
Brighton & Hove taxi trade (they prefer to join Uber with fewer rules), and 
imposing penalty points could discourage individuals from entering or staying in 
the profession. 

2. Unfairness: With the cross borders being in place, the Hackney Carriage officers 
have no enforcement powers over any cars coming from outside the city, allowing 
these outside drivers to get away with violations BH drivers will be punished for. 
This is unfair, and this proposal will only create more resentment towards the 
outside-the-city drivers, conflict and unfair treatment for the local taxis. This can 
also lead to disappointed customers who might think it is BH drivers who provided 
dissatisfactory service, when in reality it was out-of-city drivers. 

3. Privacy infringement: Under the Proposal, the officers can stop any BH Hackney 
/ Private Hire car at any time. However, as per the vehicle insurance, our cars can 
be used for private use (time with our families etc) and the vehicle can get messy 
(we might eat there or move furniture etc). During this time we are private 
citizens, and should be treated as such.  

43



2 | P a g e  
Rejection of the proposed Penalty Points System 

4. Complex Violations: Some violations by taxi drivers may involve complex 
circumstances or disputes, that are better addressed through arbitration or 
mediation, rather than a straightforward penalty points system. 

5. Economic Impact: Considering the current economic impact on taxi drivers and 
the Council itself, The Proposal will cost money to implement, plus the excessive 
use of penalty points could lead to financial hardship for drivers. 

6. Focus on Core Issues: The Council may prioritise addressing more significant 
issues in the taxi industry, such as safety concerns, vehicle standards, or customer 
service, and may choose to allocate resources accordingly. 

7. Enhancing vehicle standards: By applying a Vehicle suitability test every 6 
months, rather than waiting for the driver to commit an offence and issuing him a 
penalty point. 

8. It is already implemented in British Law: If a driver commits a driving offence, he 
will be issued with penalty points by the Police and if it is serious, the driver will 
lose his driving licence and the taxi licence at the same time. 

9. Blue Book: Brighton and Hove taxi trade rule book, aka ‘The Blue Book’ already 
requires a high level of performance from the Taxi Drivers, which sets us apart 
from the rest of the UK. 

10. Monitoring and Improvement: The Council may opt for continuous monitoring 
and improvement programs for taxi services, where they work closely with drivers 
to identify and rectify issues without resorting to penalty points. 

11. Educate and do not prosecute: Educating taxi drivers effectively through 
training courses, communication, online seminars and support as prevention, 
instead of waiting until the driver makes a mistake to be prosecuted. 

12. Inconsistent Enforcement: The current application of penalty points (as per the 
Blue Book) appears to be inconsistent and sometimes arbitrary. Drivers often 
receive points for minor infractions that do not necessarily pose a threat to 
passenger safety. 

13. Viability: There have been no viability studies or any statistical figures that have 
been raised by the Council to reflect that we have a problem that warrants this 
proposal. 

14. Increased anxiety and stress: as professional drivers who spend our work shift 
behind the wheel, we already face more pressure than regular drivers; we ferry 
rowdy, drunk or ill passengers in all weather conditions, day or night, as well as 
navigating traffic and ever-changing roadworks. Coming to work worrying about 

44



3 | P a g e  
Rejection of the proposed Penalty Points System 

receiving penalty points would make drivers more anxious and stressed, and this 
could lead to more accidents. 

Due to all the above We would like to voice my rejection to the above proposal. 

 

Date: 1st Dec. 2023 

Name:  Ahmed Abuorof ( Chairman) BTPOTDF 

 Brighton and Hove Taxi, Private Hire and Operators Trade Forum 

 

Signed:   

45



46



Bhcta-pps-29112023                                                                                                           Page 1 of 4 
 

 

 

Proposed Penalty Points System 

The Brighton & Hove Cab Trade Association is a closed to public, private online group of Brighton & Hove 

licensed hackney carriage/private hire drivers & proprietors as members. The current collective membership 

of the group is 504 of which around 50% is directly made up of locally licensed hackney carriage/private hire 

drivers & proprietors. 

The main purpose of the BHCTA is to provide a centralised hub to disseminate local licensing information 

provided by the Licensing Department and to discuss and debate such matters for representation at the 

councils regular Taxi Trade Forum. 

Guests such as local councillors and local and national media representatives are also members who are 

welcome to view and participate on the local and national taxi/private hire trade issues and news items. 

 

Specially invited guest taxi reps and trade experts from around the UK are also members which allows for a 

broader spectrum of inter-local licensing and shared issues. 

The hub also provides a very successful local network system of reporting out-of-town cars/drivers to 

respective licensing authorities of breaches of conditions of licensing, a point of which is quite suitable 

given the context of the proposed Penalty Points System.  

 

Proposed Penalty Points System 

The members of the BHCTA were provided with the following information: 

 

BHCTA Trade Members - Proposed Penalty Points System 

You will be aware that B&HCC has proposed to introduce what is commonly known as a ‘Penalty Points System’ 

for drivers, proprietors & operators. 

Please go to: https://bhcta.co.uk/pps1 which has the full council details and reasons. 

The Penalty Points Table can be viewed at: https://bhcta.co.uk/pps2 

This is following a recommendation for such a system as outlined in the 2022 DoT ‘Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle 

Licensing Best Practice Guidance for Licensing Authorities in England’. Consultation Guide. Please view 

that section here. https://bhcta.co.uk/Dot-Penalty-Enforcement 

At the Trade Forum meeting at the town hall on September 13 2023 I stated, as minuted: 

“AP – Was against it 8 years ago but I was happier this time around now that there is an appeal process in place, 

but that also needs to be improved and that it was better to work with the council then against it. 

 

I will present a balanced view to my group view on why it should be introduced as well as reasons why it should 

not be introduced noting that this would not apply to out-of-town drivers who work here without respective 

enforcement.” 

Therefore, I am offering an unbiased and hopefully balanced platform here for discussion on the PPS proposal. 

47

https://bhcta.co.uk/pps1
https://bhcta.co.uk/pps2
https://bhcta.co.uk/Dot-Penalty-Enforcement


Bhcta-pps-29112023                                                                                                           Page 2 of 4 
 

The consultation runs until November 19 and nearer that date a poll will be available here but restricted to Brighton 

& Hove licensed drivers Whatever that decision is will be presented to Licensing and may also contain various 

comments raised. 

The report of the trade consultation will go to the Licensing Committee in February 2024. 

Reasons for a PPS 

Looking through the PPS clauses it would be considered that it would not apply to a good 90% of the 

drivers/proprietors and none of the operators. As stated by Licensing. 

Of that low 5% that it may apply to it could be the case that these drivers are not quite up to the standard as their 

colleagues which is where the PPS could be used to raise their standards in offering the facility to avoid a possible 

suspension of a driver/vehicle licence. 

One of the main complaints that a lot drivers have is ‘Cherry Picking’ of jobs from the ranks. This has been 

discussed many times by the Trade Reps at the forum meetings with Licensing and councillors. This is often an 

issue raised on the BHTPH Whatsapp group. Trade Reps have asked Licensing to take action several times such 

as with Secret Shoppers. So, with a PPS in place, Licensing would be able to deal with this in an appropriate way. 

At a fairly recent ‘Multi-Agancy Joint Enforcement’ two Brighton & Hove cars were found to have defective tyres 

down to the cords which is not acceptable under any circumstances. In this case under Clause 43 of the PPS the 

driver of the vehicle would receive 3 points as a warning. 

Reason against a PPS 

The ‘Best Practice Guide’ is not law so no council is compelled to have this in place. 

However, although Lewes DC does have a PPS, this seems hardly worth the paper it is written on based on the 

very clear fact Lewes Enforcement on Lewes drivers and cars that predominantly work here in the city is non-

existent. 

So, whilst the Brighton & Hove trade has continuous Enforcement carried out around the city. Lewes drivers/car 

can work here without fear of ever having the PPS used against them. 

Just the plain fact that over the last couple of years over 130 reports of breeches of Lewes vehicle conditions of 

licencing have been sent to Lewes Licensing from the Brighton & Hove trade which speaks volumes of: 

1: The disregard that some Lewes driver have of standards 

2: The disregard that Lewes Licensing has on Enforcement, being reliant on the Brighton & Hove trade to 

supply such information. 

Brighton & Hove drivers may consider that the PPS will be oppressive with overzealous Licensing Officers, which 

may not now be the case, but could be in the future. 

I would advise that if there are specific concerns then it would be best to contact Licensing directly to pose any 

specific questions.hco@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

However, I am prepared to send in such questions and concerns on behalf of drivers to Licensing and to have the 

replies posted back on here. 

I may also be able to directly address some questions. 

There is a petition against the PPS which has been organised via the BHT&P H Whatsapp group which you can 

go to here: 

https://chng.it/mrvnmjKj 

However, I must point out that the petition (oddly) supports six monthly compliance tests which has not been 

an item of discussion by the taxi trade forum.  so please be aware of this should you sign it after fully reading it. 

 

AP – BHCTA Admin 

 

48

mailto:hco@brighton-hove.gov.uk
https://chng.it/mrvnmjKj?fbclid=IwAR1uyFONJcOp5wWKXUSnxs9R4pBtseRyAdKVwGDvt25uWd57HGveVbq-jjo


Bhcta-pps-29112023                                                                                                           Page 3 of 4 
 
 

Penalty Points System – Full Details 

The full details of the PPS consultation that was provided by the licensing department was made available for the BHCTA 

members to read and download from the BHCTA website at: bhcta.co.uk/pps1 

BHCTA – Online Poll 

The provision of an online poll was available to vote either ‘For’ the PPS, ‘Against’ it, or if ‘Undecided’. 

The poll was restricted to voting by only Brighton & Hove licensed drivers/proprietors. 

The result of the poll of those members who took part was: 

47 Against  - 2 For 

The poll demonstrates that the introduction of a Penalty Points System is not supported.  

Comments & Concerns 

The Licensing Department & Licensing Committee may like to address the following comments submitted by drivers: 

 

“I would have voted yes, because if you "walk the line" you should have nothing to fear. My problem with it, is you can 

accrue too many points for just making mistakes...you don't have to do anything "bad" to lose your licence through 

"totting up". I also think the expiry time for points should be 12 months in the case of "minor faults" and 24 for something 

major.” 

 

“My problem with this is if you are wrongly accused of something like I was and you receive a letter from the police to 

prove your innocent which I did all at my own expense, will the council reimburse your costs? I was accused of do 

something on a day I could clearly prove that I wasn't even working.” 

Out-of-Town Uncontrolled Enforcement 

The council will be aware of the massive numbers of drivers/cars that are not licensed by Brighton & Hove council from 

Lewes, Chichester, Southampton, Portsmouth, Havant and other areas that predominantly work here in the city. 

Based on this, one main concern that was not only raised in the general discussion within the BHCTA, but also a point 

raised within the local trade is the complete lack of respective local licensing enforcement on these ‘Out-of-Town’ cars. 

On this basis there is concern that whilst the locally licensed trade would be under a Penalty Point System for 

misdemeanours/breaches of licensing conditions, those ‘Out-of-Town’ cars will continue to work here in the city without 

any care of being penalised under any such Penalty Point System. 

This argument is even more pertinent considering that Chichester, Havant, Southampton, Portsmouth or Havant do not 

currently have such a Penalty Points System in place. 

Lewes District Council & Eastbourne Borough Council both have a Penalty Points System and whilst we do not have 

Eastbourne BC private hire drivers/vehicle predominantly working in the city, there are a huge number of Lewes DC 

private hire drivers/vehicles that do. In fact, there is no hesitation in stating that the vast majority of the 400+ Lewes 

private hire vehicles never leave Brighton & Hove and work here uncontrolled. 

Along with all the other ‘Out-of-Town’ drivers/vehicles, these work ‘out-of-sight’ and ‘out-of-mind’ of Lewes Licensing 

Enforcement and it is only the local taxi network here that continues to provides evidence of breaches of respective 

licensing conditions which to date has been in excess of over 130 reports. This includes such drivers/vehicles using taxi 

ranks in the city. Many similar reports have been sent to Southampton, Chichester and Portsmouth Licensing 

Departments and it is pleasing to say that the Licensing Officers from these areas respond and act very quickly, unlike 

our experience with the Lewes Licensing Department that never replies to any reports although unknown action may 

still have be taken. 

49

file:///D:/Taxi%20Matters/Penalty%20Points/bhcta.co.uk/pps1


Bhcta-pps-29112023                                                                                                           Page 4 of 4 
 
On this basis would it be fair to impose a Penalty Point System on the Brighton & Hove licensed taxi trade when ‘Out-

of-Town’ drivers/vehicles predominantly work here without any fear or concern about being penalised for breaching 

respective licensing conditions? 

If the council does introduce a Penalty Points System, then the Brighton & Hove licensed taxi/private hire trade needs 

assurance that a new robust system is in place where a better way of reporting is provided to the local taxi trade. This 

is not only for breaches of respective licensing conditions but also for the direct reporting of the abuse of the city ranks 

being used without care or concern by ‘Out-of-Town’ cars.  

Whilst Lewes DC does at times participate in the ‘Joint Enforcement Agency Operations’ in the city, which involves the 

Brighton & Hove Licensing. Police, DVSA and ‘occasionally’ Licensing Officers from other areas, there are no other 

times when there is Lewes Licensing Enforcement in the city, nor indeed Licensing Enforcement from all the other areas 

This is quite an ironic situation where there can be as many drivers/vehicles not licensed by Brighton & Hove Council 

working in the city as there are fully licensed Brighton & Hove private hire and hackney carriage drivers/vehicles  

It is known that Brighton & Hove council has a concordant arrangement with Lewes District Council which provides a 

limited level of Enforcement on Lewes DC licensed drivers/vehicles. 

The council should ask the Lewes Licensing department for a public statement on its methods of Enforcement of its 

licensed vehicles that predominantly work here in the city. Additionally,  as to whether its own Penalty Points System is 

applied when such vehicles are in breach of conditions of licensing when working outside of the Lewes Licensing 

Authority and where these use the city taxi ranks. 

For example, the Lewes PPS states: 

‘6: Private hire vehicle parking or waiting on a taxi rank  - 9 Points’ 

Does this apply to when using Brighton & Hove taxi ranks? 

Conclusion 

• The BHCTA poll on the introduction of a Penalty Points System shows that this is not supported. 

• This is especially relevant where the city is flooded with drivers/vehicles that predominantly work here, ‘Out-of-

Sight’ and ‘Out-of-Mind’ of respective local Licensing Enforcement. 

• If a Penalty Points System is put in place, then the Brighton & Hove taxi/private hire trade needs full assurance 

that a robust and swift acting protocol will be put in place to deal with out-of-town cars that commit offences 

within the city. 

 

Andrew Peters 

BHCTA 

November 28 2023 

50



Complaint

•Formal Complaint Report received

•Assigned to Investigating Officer

•The complaint is evaluated to determine its credibility and seriousness

Investigation

If the complaint appears to involve a potential offence or breach of regulation the 
investigation moves forward and further information is gathered, this may include 
interviewing the licence holder, witness statements, CCTV footage, photographs, 
documentation, or any other evidence that can shed light on the alleged offence

Findings

•Based on the finding of the investigation, appropriate action is taken if the 
evidence supports that an offence has been committed. The specific 
consequences depend on the severity of the offence or breach, and the applicable 
laws and regulations

Penalty 
Points?

If penalty points are deemed to be appropriate this allows officers to allocate 
points depending upon the nature and severity of the alleged misdemeanour

Other Actions 
Instead?

•Currently once investigations are completed officers can take various actions 
which include taking no further action, formal words of advice, further training, 
warning letters, suspension or revocation of licence. Although these options are 
still available, The Penalty Point System would allow officers to deal with low level 
offences in a fair and transparent manner

Right to 
Appeal

Any licensee that is aggrieved by the issuing of points they may appeal to the 
Regulatory Services Manager who is independent of any investigation

Penalty Points System – How does it work? 

 

 

 

51



52



Brighton & Hove City Council 

 
 

Licensing Committee 
(Non-Licensing 
Functions) 

Agenda Item 26

  

Subject: Hackney Carriage Fare Review 
 
Date of meeting: 13 February 2024 
 
Report of: Executive Director of Housing, Neighbourhoods, and 

Communities 
 
Contact Officer: Name: Martin Seymour 
 Tel: 01273 296659 
 Email: martin.seymour@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
  
Ward(s) affected: All 
 

For general release   
 

1. Purpose of the report and policy context 
 
1.1 To seek the Committee’s approval and authority to advertise proposed fare 

increases following the hackney carriage trade’s request for an increase in 
fares. 

 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 That Committee approves the proposed fare increases and authorises the 

Head of Safer Communities to advertise the proposed variation in fares and 
invite any objections in accordance with the legal requirements. 
 

2.2 Agree that if no objections are made, or if any objections which are made 
are withdrawn, the varied table of fares will come into force in accordance 
with the statutory scheme. 
 

2.3 Reconsider the matter at the next meeting of this Committee if valid 
objections are made but not withdrawn. As there are strict legal timescales 
relating to fare reviews a special meeting of this Committee may be 
required. 

 
3. Context and background information 

 
3.1 The council may fix the rates for hackney carriage fares within the district as 

well as time and distance and all other charges in connection with the hire of 
a vehicle or with the arrangements for hire of a vehicle to be paid in respect 
of the hire of a hackney carriage. The council does not have the power to set 
private hire vehicle fares but historically the local operators follow the 
hackney carriage tariffs set by the council.  
 

53



 

 

3.2 On the 17 November 2023 the Department for Transport published its updated 
Taxi and private hire vehicle licensing best practice guidance for licensing 
authorities in England. Best Practice Guidance  
 

3.3 The Best Practice Guidance refers to Setting taxi fare rates. 

 
10.2 Setting taxi fare rates 

Maximum fare rates should be designed with a view to practicality and 
reviewed regularly, including any variability of the fare rates dependent on 
time of day or day of the week. Authorities should consider adopting a 
simple formula for deciding on fare changes as this will increase 
understanding and improve the transparency of the process for passengers. 
The Department recommends that in reviewing fare rates, authorities should 
pay particular regard to the needs of the travelling public, with reference 
both to what it is reasonable to expect people to pay but also to the need to 
give taxi drivers the ability to earn a sufficient income and so incentivise 
them to provide a service when it is needed. There is likely to be a case for 
higher fare tariffs at times of higher demand to encourage more drivers to 
make themselves available or when the journeys are required at anti-social 
times. 

To ensure that taxi tariffs reflect the costs of the trade they should be 
reviewed following significant changes in licensing fees and other major 
costs such as fuel. Regular reviews will assist drivers in maintaining their 
earnings and so continue to attract those seeking to become taxi drivers and 
provide existing licensees with greater confidence to remain in the trade and 
plan for future investment in new vehicles. Regular reviews will also avoid 
large changes in fares for passengers that infrequent reviews are more likely 
to result in. 

3.4     The Trade have submitted the following reasons for requesting a fare 
increase at this time:  

 

As requested I’ve collected the forum’s reasons to justify our request for the 
agreed fare review.  

- Most importantly to keep tabs on the rate of inflation. As shown in the 
calculation tables, our detailed fare request matches just under the 
CPI rate tracked from August 2019 to now. 

- Increased expenditures to keep our vehicles on the road, and 
licensed to the high standards demanded by the blue book which we 
are proud to comply with. Fuel has levelled off for now, however it is 
still a lot higher than back in 2019. Insurance however, has sky 
rocketed to an average of around 20% increases for most renewal 
quotes seen this year! 

- Unfortunately we have dropped from 8th to 41st in the national fares 
table comparing with all the UK LA’s. Our calculations simply place us 
back to 11th in table. 

- Government living wage going to £11.44 per hour so we need to work 
backwards in costs to make sure this is achievable for the lowest paid 

54

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licensing-best-practice-guidance/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licensing-best-practice-guidance-for-licensing-authorities-in-england


 

 

ie a journeyman. So a journeyman on 50/50 would need to take at 
least £22.88per hour to collect living wage if he wasn’t 50/50 on fuel. 

 

- We are NOT requesting a flag fall increase. Simply just a yardage 
decrease to make it a fairer adjustment for journeys of all lengths 
across the board. Keeping the flag fall low protects those vulnerable 
customers taking shorter journeys through necessity, whilst not 
necessarily being able to afford a taxi. Keeping that initial flag fall 
where it is really does limit the impact for those customers mentioned 
above, and enables them to manage any increase in their journeys. 

 
The way we have engineered this years fare review will enable our drivers 
and proprietors to maintain their licensed vehicles, whilst simultaneously 
providing for their families and themselves. The current rate of inflation 
increase has slowed, however it is still well above the Bank of England’s 
target of 2%. Any rate of inflation means goods and services must follow in 
order to maintain any reasonable standard of living. We can see the council 
recognises this, with the proposed increased licensing fees table sent out a 
couple of months ago. Business sectors up and down the country have 
demonstrated their empathy towards their workforces, Introducing similar 
increases to battle the current cost of living crisis. 
Moving forward, using the calculations table provided we will easily be able 
to check the suitability and sustainability for any future fare review increases. 
We will be looking to review this on an annual basis. 
 

3.4 Applications for hackney carriage fare increases are made through the Taxi 
Forum and based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation produced by 
the Office of National Statistics. If the consensus of the trade agrees with a 
fare increase, representatives of the trade will be called to a meeting to 
discuss any proposals with officers of the Council and the lead councilor of 
the licensing committee who will then present any proposal agreed by that 
meeting to the next available meeting of the Licensing Committee for their 
consideration. 

 
3.5 The proposal from the trade is based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) 

inflation produced by the Office of National Statistics which shows the 
increase in CPI inflation from August 2019 to September 2023 to be 20.12%. 
The proposal gives an increase of 18.61% since August 2019 which is below 
the CPI rate and approximately 8.4% increase since the last increase in 
October 2022.       

 
3.6 The proposal from the trade equates to a 30p increase per mile to £3.00 and 

the proposed Table of fares can be seen at Appendix 1 and a % change 
tables can be seen at Appendix 2.  

 
3.7 Tariffs 6 to 10 are in effect 1.5 x the tariffs of 1 to 5 which was introduced to 

encourage proprietors purchasing wheelchair accessible vehicles and is 
applied to vehicles carrying 5 or more passengers. 
 

3.8 Currently in the national league tables for fares shows that Brighton & Hove 
is positioned joint 44th (December 2023) for Tariff 1 at the 2-mile point and 

55



 

 

after the proposed increase it is estimated that the position will be joint 13th 
out of 344 Local Authorities.  

 
4. Analysis and consideration of alternative options  
 
4.1 Licensing authorities have discretion to fix the table of hackney carriage 

fares within the licensing district. Demand of a fare greater than shown on 
the meter is prohibited except by prior agreement for journeys outside the 
district. Exercising this power offers passengers protection. Not undertaking 
a hackney carriage review may make businesses unprofitable and 
inadequate number of taxis to meet demand. 

 
5. Community engagement and consultation 
 
5.1 The subject of the fare review is a constant agenda item at the council’s 

hackney carriage and private hire consultation forum where all members of 
that forum are free to express their opinions. The forum members have 
delegated negotiations to selected representatives. 

 
5.2 The procedure for presenting the trade’s request for a review has been 

followed. This involves the trade’s representatives making representations to 
the chair of The Licensing Committee (non-Licensing Act 2003) and officers.  

 
5.3 A meeting with the trade representatives, the Chairman Licensing 

Committee, council officers was held on 30 November 2023 where a 
proposal was agreed in principle to go to the committee. 

 
6. Conclusion 

 
6.1 That the Chair confirmed their support for the proposed fare review follow 

the meeting with the trade and licensing officers on the 30 November 2023 
for an increase in maximum fares and that the Head of Community Safety 
advertises the proposed variation in fares and invites any objections in 
accordance with the legal requirements. 

 
7. Financial implications 

 
7.1 The cost of advertising the proposed fare increases will be met from the 

existing hackney carriage revenue budget. The fare levels are used by the 
trade and are not an income stream to the council. 

 
Name of finance officer consulted: Michael Bentley Date consulted : 
22/01/24 

 
8. Legal implications 
 
8.1 The power to fix fares for hackney carriages is provided by Section 65 of the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. The procedure is 
set out in the body of the report. 

 
Name of lawyer consulted: Date consulted (dd/mm/yy):  

56



 

 

 
9. Equalities implications 
 
9.1 Licensing authorities must ensure that a safe hackney carriage and private 

hire vehicle service is freely available to meet the demand across all sectors 
of the public, especially those vulnerable groups to whom a taxi or private 
hire vehicle is often the only means of completing a journey. 

 
10. Sustainability implications 
 
10.1 The role of the taxi trade is included in the Local Transport Plan, which 

identifies it as a key element in providing sustainable transport choices. It 
creates important links in the transport network to other forms of sustainable 
transport providing a seamless connection. It will contribute to three of the 
government’s four shared transport priorities – reducing congestion, 
improving air quality and accessibility. Use of taxis for school transport, 
licensed vehicles using bus lanes, locating ranks at railway stations and the 
city coach station, approved use of liquid petroleum gas and provision of 
Rapid Charging Hubs all contribute to reducing congestion and moving 
passengers quickly. 

 
 
11. Other Implications  
 

           None 
 

Supporting Documentation 
 

1. Appendices  
 
1. Proposed Tariff Card 
2. % Change Sheets for proposed tariffs 
3. League Table 
 

 
 
 
 

 

57



58



Proposal Feb 2024

CURRENT TARIFF CURRENT TARIFF 

Name : Name : Name : Name : Name :

Date: 01/10/2022 Date: 01/10/2022 Date: 01/10/2022 Date: 01/10/2022 Date: 01/10/2022

Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00

Wait: 36 (secs) Wait: 36 (secs) Wait: 36 (secs) Wait: 36 (secs) Wait: 36 (secs)

Flag fall: £3.00 A Flag fall: £4.00 A Flag fall: £5.00 A Flag fall: £4.50 A Flag fall: £6.00 A

Initial yardage: 293 B Initial yardage: 293 B Initial yardage: 293 B Initial yardage: 293 B Initial yardage: 293 B

Unit  thereafter: 197 C Unit  thereafter: 197 C
Unit  

thereafter: 197 C Unit  thereafter: 197 C Unit  thereafter: 197 C

Price unit : 0.3 D Price unit : 0.3 D Price unit : 0.3 D Price unit : 0.45 D Price unit : 0.6 D

Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54

 PROPOSAL   - Feb 2024  PROPOSAL   - March  2015Oct-22

Name : Name : Name : Name : Name :

Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00

Wait: 54 (secs) Wait: 54 (secs) Wait: 54 (secs) Wait: 54 (secs) Wait: 54 (secs)

Flag fall: £3.00 A Flag fall: £4.00 A Flag fall: £5.00 A Flag fall: £4.50 A Flag fall: £6.00 A

Initial yardage: 176 B Initial yardage: 176 B Initial yardage: 176 B Initial yardage: 176 B Initial yardage: 176 B

Unit  thereafter: 176 C Unit  thereafter: 176 C
Unit  

thereafter: 176 C Unit  thereafter: 176 C Unit  thereafter: 176 C

Price unit : 0.3 D Price unit : 0.3 D Price unit : 0.3 D Price unit : 0.45 D Price unit : 0.6 D

Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54

Distance Distance Distance Distance Distance

(miles) Current Proposed % Change (miles) Current Proposed % Change (miles) Current Proposed % Change (miles) Current Proposed % Change (miles) Current Proposed % Change

Flag £3.00 £3.00 0.00% Flag £4.00 £4.00 0.00% Flag £5.00 £5.00 0.00% Flag £4.50 £4.50 0.00% Flag £6.00 £6.00 0.00%

1 £5.40 £5.70 5.56% 1 £6.40 £6.70 4.69% 1 £7.40 £7.70 4.05% 1 £8.10 £8.55 5.56% 1 £10.80 £11.40 5.56%

2 £8.10 £8.70 7.41% 2 £9.10 £9.70 6.59% 2 £10.10 £10.70 5.94% 2 £12.15 £13.05 7.41% 2 £16.20 £17.40 7.41%

3 £10.80 £11.70 8.33% 3 £11.80 £12.70 7.63% 3 £12.80 £13.70 7.03% 3 £16.20 £17.55 8.33% 3 £21.60 £23.40 8.33%

4 £13.50 £14.70 8.89% 4 £14.50 £15.70 8.28% 4 £15.50 £16.70 7.74% 4 £20.25 £22.05 8.89% 4 £27.00 £29.40 8.89%

5 £16.20 £17.70 9.26% 5 £17.20 £18.70 8.72% 5 £18.20 £19.70 8.24% 5 £24.30 £26.55 9.26% 5 £32.40 £35.40 9.26%

6 £18.90 £20.70 9.52% 6 £19.90 £21.70 9.05% 6 £20.90 £22.70 8.61% 6 £28.35 £31.05 9.52% 6 £37.80 £41.40 9.52%

7 £21.60 £23.70 9.72% 7 £22.60 £24.70 9.29% 7 £23.60 £25.70 8.90% 7 £32.40 £35.55 9.72% 7 £43.20 £47.40 9.72%

8 £24.00 £26.70 11.25% 8 £25.00 £27.70 10.80% 8 £26.00 £28.70 10.38% 8 £36.00 £40.05 11.25% 8 £48.00 £53.40 11.25%

9 £26.70 £29.70 11.24% 9 £27.70 £30.70 10.83% 9 £28.70 £31.70 10.45% 9 £40.05 £44.55 11.24% 9 £53.40 £59.40 11.24%
10 £29.40 £32.70 11.22% 10 £30.40 £33.70 10.86% 10 £31.40 £34.70 10.51% 10 £44.10 £49.05 11.22% 10 £58.80 £65.40 11.22%

Average Increase 8.40% 7.88% 7.44% 8.40% 8.40%

Average from 2019 18.61% 17.33% N/A 18.61% 18.61%

Note: CPI 20.12% From August 2019 to September 2023

TARIFF 1 TARIFF 2

TARIFF 1 TARIFF 2

TARIFF 1 TARIFF 2

TARIFF 5

TARIFF 5

TARIFF 5

TARIFF 3 TARIFF 4

TARIFF 3 TARIFF 4

TARIFF 3 TARIFF 4

59



60



Proposal Feb 24

CURRENT TARIFF CURRENT TARIFF 

Name : Name : Name : Name : Name :

Date: 01/03/2022 Date: 01/03/2022 Date: N/A Date: 01/03/2022 Date: 01/03/2022

Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00

Wait: 36 (secs) Wait: 36 (secs) Wait: 36 (secs) Wait: 36 (secs) Wait: 36 (secs)

Flag fall: £4.50 A Flag fall: £6.00 A Flag fall: £7.50 A Flag fall: £6.75 A Flag fall: £9.00 A

Initial yardage: 293 B Initial yardage: 293 B Initial yardage: 293 B Initial yardage: 293 B Initial yardage: 293 B

Unit  thereafter: 197 C Unit  thereafter: 197 C
Unit  

thereafter: 197 C Unit  thereafter: 197 C Unit  thereafter: 197 C

Price unit : 0.45 D Price unit : 0.45 D Price unit : 0.45 D Price unit : 0.7 D Price unit : 0.9 D

Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54

 PROPOSAL   - March  2015 Feb-24  PROPOSAL   - March  2015Feb-24

Name : Name : Name : Name : Name :

Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00 Soiling charge: £100.00

Wait: 54 (secs) Wait: 54 (secs) Wait: 54 (secs) Wait: 54 (secs) Wait: 54 (secs)

Flag fall: £4.50 A Flag fall: £6.00 A Flag fall: £7.50 A Flag fall: £6.75 A Flag fall: £9.00 A

Initial yardage: 176 B Initial yardage: 176 B Initial yardage: 176 B Initial yardage: 176 B Initial yardage: 176 B

Unit  thereafter: 176 C Unit  thereafter: 176 C
Unit  

thereafter: 176 C Unit  thereafter: 176 C Unit  thereafter: 176 C

Price unit : 0.45 D Price unit : 0.45 D Price unit : 0.45 D Price unit : 0.7 D Price unit : 0.9 D

Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54 Initial Waiting Time (secs): 54

Distance Distance Distance Distance Distance

(miles) Current Proposed % Change (miles) Current Proposed % Change (miles) Current Proposed % Change (miles) Current Proposed % Change (miles) Current Proposed % Change

Flag £4.50 £4.50 0.00% Flag £6.00 £6.00 0.00% Flag £7.50 £7.50 0.00% Flag £6.75 £6.75 0.00% Flag £9.00 £9.00 0.00%

1 £8.10 £8.55 5.56% 1 £9.60 £10.05 4.69% 1 £11.10 £11.55 4.05% 1 £12.35 £13.05 5.67% 1 £16.20 £17.10 5.56%

2 £12.15 £13.05 7.41% 2 £13.65 £14.55 6.59% 2 £15.15 £16.05 5.94% 2 £18.65 £20.05 7.51% 2 £24.30 £26.10 7.41%

3 £16.20 £17.55 8.33% 3 £17.70 £19.05 7.63% 3 £19.20 £20.55 7.03% 3 £24.95 £27.05 8.42% 3 £32.40 £35.10 8.33%

4 £20.25 £22.05 8.89% 4 £21.75 £23.55 8.28% 4 £23.25 £25.05 7.74% 4 £31.25 £34.05 8.96% 4 £40.50 £44.10 8.89%

5 £24.30 £26.55 9.26% 5 £25.80 £28.05 8.72% 5 £27.30 £29.55 8.24% 5 £37.55 £41.05 9.32% 5 £48.60 £53.10 9.26%

6 £28.35 £31.05 9.52% 6 £29.85 £32.55 9.05% 6 £31.35 £34.05 8.61% 6 £43.85 £48.05 9.58% 6 £56.70 £62.10 9.52%

7 £32.40 £35.55 9.72% 7 £33.90 £37.05 9.29% 7 £35.40 £38.55 8.90% 7 £50.15 £55.05 9.77% 7 £64.80 £71.10 9.72%

8 £36.00 £40.05 11.25% 8 £37.50 £41.55 10.80% 8 £39.00 £43.05 10.38% 8 £55.75 £62.05 11.30% 8 £72.00 £80.10 11.25%

9 £40.05 £44.55 11.24% 9 £41.55 £46.05 10.83% 9 £43.05 £47.55 10.45% 9 £62.05 £69.05 11.28% 9 £80.10 £89.10 11.24%
10 £44.10 £49.05 11.22% 10 £45.60 £50.55 10.86% 10 £47.10 £52.05 10.51% 10 £68.35 £76.05 11.27% 10 £88.20 £98.10 11.22%

Average Increase 8.40% 7.88% 7.44% 8.46% 8.40%

Average from 2019 18.61% 17.33% N/A 21.84% 18.61%

Note: CPI 20.21% From August 2019 to September 2023

TARIFF 6 TARIFF 7

TARIFF 6 TARIFF 7

TARIFF 6 TARIFF 7

TARIFF 10

TARIFF 10

TARIFF 10

TARIFF 8 TARIFF 9

TARIFF 8 TARIFF 9

TARIFF 8 TARIFF 9

61



62



63



64


	Agenda
	22 Public Involvement
	24 Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Driver Enforcement and Monitoring
	Table of Enforcement APX. n 1

	25 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Penalty Points Scheme
	B+HCC Penalty Points Scheme APX. n 1
	Consultation APX. n 2  Penalty Points Scheme
	Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Penalty Points Scheme APX. n 3
	Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Penalty Points Scheme APX. n 4
	Flow Chart

	26 Hackney Carriage Fare Review
	Change Sheet 1 APX. n 1
	Change Sheet 2 APX. n 2
	League Table APX. n 3


